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jg.J(flr~m THE STATE TRADING CORPORATION OF INDIA LTD.
~Ii[dl (A Govt. of India Enterprise)

STC/BS&P/BS/1 0082/2017ISTEX

The National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block-G
Bandra Kurla Complex
Bandra East
Mumbai-400051

Sir/Madam,

Subject: Clarification for Financial Results- STCINDIA

Ref: NSE email dated September 18,2025

September 29, 2025

Kindly refer to your email dated September 18, 2025 on the captioned subject, wherein NSE
has sought the clarification for following deficiencies 1observations in the financial results
for the year ended March 31,2025 of STC submitted to the exchange on September 17,
2025.

1. Consolidated Financial Results not submitted.
2. Financial results submitted is not as per format prescribed by SEBI.

In this regard, the following are informed:

For SI.No.1: The Consolidated Audited Annual Financial Results for FY 2024-25 has
submitted on September 17,2025 to both the Stock Exchanges and the same is enclosed
along with Auditors' Report for your reference.

For SI.No.2: Due to non-appointment of Independent Directors on the Board of STC Limited
by its Administrative Ministry i.e Ministry of Commerce & Industries, the Company is unable
to constitute its Audit Committee as per the provision of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015.
Since the Audit Committee is not in place, therefore, the Statement of Impact on Audit
Qualifications (Sal) was not signed by Chairman of Audit Committee.

Hope the above clarifies STC's position with regard to the discrepancies observed by NSE
in respect of Financial Results submitted by STC Limited for the period ended March 31,
2025.

Thanking you,
Yours sincerely,
For The State Trading Corporation of India Limited

~j\'w"(
(Vipin Tripathi)
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

~~:~ClIl'Q'R'1fCFI,~lfT1f.~~-1100011Regd. Office: JawaharVyapar Shawan, Tolstoy Marg, New Delhi-110001

~~~ ICorporate Identity No. L74899DL1956G01002674

~/Telephone: 011-23462005, l-~/E-mail: co@stclimited.co.in ~/Website: www.stclimited.co.in
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
VAR A s CI

48, 1st Floor, Navyug Market, Ghaziabad - 201 001 (U.P.)
Telefax: 0120-2790454, 0120-4374021
E-mail: pvarassociates@gmail.com
Website: www.pvarassociates.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To
The Members of

The State Trading Corporation of India Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

\V'e have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements ofThe State Trading Corporation
of India Limited ("the Parent") and its subsidiary "STCL Limited", the parent and its subsidiary are
together referred to as "the Group" which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of changes in
Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, notes to the Consolidated
financial statements including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as "The Consolidated Financial Statements").

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion and because of the various issues as mentioned in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraphs, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements except for the qualified opinion give the
information requited by the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so requited and present a
true and fait view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of
the Act read with the Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015 as amended, ("Ind AS")
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affaits of the Group as at 31 st
March 2025 and its net profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Non -Current Assets held for Sule

t. Refer to Note No.4(a) ifCOnJ'olidated Financial Statements, non-availabiliry ~f title deeds
in the name ofthe Group in respect ofJoIIOlJJingpropet1ies nameD':

a) Leasehold Building

t. Leasehold land at jaJJJahar Vjapar BhaJJJan valued at Rs. 55,929 lacs
!t. Leasehold land at Flousing Colof!)' at Aurobindo M.at:?, valued at Rs. 12,394 lacs
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b) Freehold Building

I. 8 Residential Flats at Asian Games Village Complex, allotted ry DDA
amounting to Rs. 2720 lacs

II. 7 apartments in dijferent locations ofMumbai amounting to Rs. 1918 lacs
ttl. rlats at Ahmedabad

Further, leaseperiodforplot at Mallet Bunder, Mumbai Port T17fst has alreaqy expired and
the land has been handed over to Mumbai Port T17fst. SutTender certijicate has been executed
on 12.11.2021. But this still continues to be shown as non-cumnt assets heldfor sale. Thus,
non- cumnt assets held for sale has been overstated ry Rs. 11.67 lacs. It Ivill also have
consequential impad on the Statement of Profit and Loss account resulting into
overstatement ofprofit by Rs. 11.67Iacs.

Further the farm tanks installed at Mallet Bunder amounting to Rs. 14.84 lacs have also
been handed over on as is where is basis. The Group has not raised at!} debit notefor the same
and thus non-cumnt assets are being overstated by Rs. 14.84Iacs.

Further to this, the auction ofthe STC assets was conducted ry MBPT on 11.06.2024 and
the assets were ultimatelY soldfor Rs. 355 lacs, with the previouslYfoifeited EMD ofRs. 25
Lacs. STC calculated its total receivablesfrom MBPT at Rs. 418 lacs which includes the sale
proceeds, EMD and deposits. STC to set offthis amount against the Rs. 257 lacs Lease rent
pqyable, (amountyet to be reconciled with MBPT) resulting in a net receivable ofRs. 161 lacs
from MBPT. Refer Note 57.

rurther, Group has not amortized the value ofthe leaseholdproperties according to the IND AS 116
for theperiod expired ti1l31.03.2025 resulting into overstatement ofnon-current assets heldfor sale and
consequential impat,t on profit of the Group, the amount whereof could not be quantijied in absence of
complete data from the Group.

ii. Refer Note No.4, for non-aqjustment ofvalue/area in Fixed Assets Register against areas acquired
ry Delhi Metro Rail C01poration (DMRC) for const17fction of Metro Station & ry L&DO for
widening ofthe Road during Asian Games, as well as the flats/area ofland sold ry the Group to The
Handicrafts and Handloom Exports Corporation ofIndia Limited (HHEC) for its Housing colo'!)l.
Management is in cotTespondence with DMRC and concerned departments.
This has resulted into overstatement ofnon-cutTent assets heldfor sale and consequential impad on profit
ofthe Group, the amount Ivhereofcould not be quantijied in absence ofcomplete data fivm the Group.

2. Trade Receivables

All trade receivables amounting to 1,72,533.71 lacs as per Note No.9 have been outstandingfor more than 3
years. The Group has made provision for bad and doubiful debts amounting to Rs. 65,551.17 lacs and another
sum ofRs. 1,06, 982.54 lacs have been shown as "Having Significant increase in credit risk~~since
the same is under litigation. Asper Note No.9, it is explained that no provision has been madefor the same since
the relevant creditors Ivill bepaid onlY after recovery ofthese trade receivables, though in most ofthe cases agreements
are not tripartite.
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Further there has been no recovery during the Finandal Year 2024-25 and there is no mqjor update 0/legal cases
which arepending at variousforums. Thus, trade receivable are not statedat realizable value less cost to be incurred
to recover these trade receivables. There is also no balance confirmation available for these trade receivables as on
31.03.2025 and hence we are unable to (Omment upon the genuineness and effect of the same on the finandal
statements, ifatry.

We are of the view that all trade receivables amounting to 1,72,533.71 lacs are considered doubtful of recovery
resulting into shortprovision for doubtful debts amounting to Rs. 1,06,982.54 lacs. Thus the provision for bad
and doubtful debts has been understated !?y Rs. 1,06,982.54 lacs and consequential impact on the statement 0/
prq/it and Loss account resulting into overstatement ofprofit!?y Rs. 1,06,982.54lacs.

Further in case ofM/s Rqjat Pharmaceuticals Ltd (RPL), under note no.39, Pt.No.4, Jvho drew bills ofexchange
on STC which were accepted upon receipt 0/overseas b'!Yer's pre-acceptance to STC's bills ofexchange. HOJvever,
the foreign b'!Yers defaulted in making pcryments against the export bills and have gone into liquidation. A sum
ofRs.52786 lacs has been admitted!?y the liquidator of one ofthe foreign b'!Yer's i.e. Loben Trading Co. Pte.
Ltd, Singapore. A Decree ofRs 6247 lacs approx. has been passed !?y Hon 'ble Bombqy High Court in favour
ofSTC against the dues from anotherforeign b'!Yer i.e Sweetland Trading Pte Ltd, Singapore. As ofcurrent
date, RPL hasgone into liquidation and oificialliquidator is appointed !?y Hon 'ble High Court o/Bombcry. The
matter is also under investigation !?y CBL Banks & l'znancial institutions have filed legal suit against RPL
before DRT/High Court Mumbaz~ making STC also aparty to the case claiming Rs. 47647 lacs.

STC hasfiled non-monry claim suit before different Courts at Delhi & Mumbaifor declaring Bills o/Exchanges
0/STC as null and void and unenforceable against STC which were conditionallY accepted !?y STC on back-to­
balk basis t:e. STC will make pcryment to Rtyat/Banks onlY upon receipt 0/ export proceeds from the foreign
b'!Yers.

STC hadfiled 272 Criminal Complaints u/s 138 ofN.I Act in New Delhi in 2009 which were transferred
from MM Court, Patiala House District Court, New Delhi to the 33rd MM Court, Ballard Pier, Mumbai.
Now the matters have been again transferred to M.M. Court, Ma:<gaon, Bombqy. STC is claiming an amount
or Rs.45,635 lacs from M/s Rtyat tOJvards cheque bounce. Cases ,are at the stage 0/ issuing 0/
summons/ ar;guments on issuing 0/summons.

In the case o/ICICI Bank Ltd (Bank ofRtyasthan Ltd) v. The State Trading Corporation o/India Ltd. &
Ors related to M/s Rtyat Pharmaceuticals Ltd, as per the final order dated 11.06.2025passed !?y the Hon'ble
Debts Recovery Tribunal-II, Delht~ STC has been directed to deposit a sum ofRs. 2,655 lacs within 30 dcrys
from the date oforder. However, STC has lhallenged the DRT, Delhi Award and has filed an appeal before
DRAT, Delhi on 25.07.2025. STC is hopeful ofgetting relief, hence no provision (being of(Ontingent nature)
has been made. Profit ofthe compa,!)! is overstated and the liabilities are understated !?y the same amount.

Also rifer to Note No. 39, for matters other than RPL, as all these matters are subjudice and/or under
investigation ofCBI and we are unable to (Omment upon the genuineness and effett of the same on the Financial
Statements.

3. Foreign Currency Receivables and Payables

CurrentlY, as per books ofaccounts, USD 3,149.35 lacs and Euros 20.90 lacs is receilJable from its foreign
b'!Yers and USD 41.49 lacs and Pound 0.04 lacs is pq)'able to itsforeign suppliers. In nutshell, there areforeign
b'!Yers and creditors standing in the finandals ofSTC which have not been revalued in the FY2024-25.

Page 3 of24



Thus, the Group has not complied with IndAS 21 (regarding Effects ofChanges in Foreign Exchange) fry not
revaluing the canying amounts, in most cases, offoreign currenry receivables and payables, which are under
litigationldisputed.

Therefore, we are unable to ascettain the potential impact on the financial statements, ifairy.

4. Other Current Assets

t. Rifer Note No. 14 -"Other Current Assetsfor non-provisioning in respect ofDuties and taxes recoverable,
CST (coal) amounting to Rs. 6.89 lacs which is non recoverable and still not written off.

tt. RiferNote No. 11- Other FinancialAssets -Claims Recoverable: For non-provisioning in respect ofClaims
Recoverable 01s since more than 3years amounting to Rs.3157. 74 lacs lvhere no present status is ascettained
fry the management ofthe Group and still not written off.

This is non-compliance ofIND AS -36 as no provision has been madefor impaired assets.

All these current assets are being reflected at their canying amounts instead ofon Realization values.

This has resulted into overstatement of Current assets fry Rs.3157.74 lacs and overstatement ofprofit fry
Rs.3157.74 lacs.

5. Provisions

RiferNote No. 38,for non-provision ofa demand ofRr. 4,743 lacs out oftotal demand receivedfrom Land and
Development Office -New Delhi amounting to Rs. 13,283 lacs (for theperiodMarch,2004 to JulY, 2018) lvhich
has resulted in overstatement ofprofit fry Rs 4,743 lacs and understatement of liabilities. However, it has been
shown as contingent liability. Also, compalry has notprovidedfor interest accruing on the said demand amount (to
be calculated at the rate of 10%) approx. Profits are overstated and liabilities are understated fry the amountyet
to be ascettained fry Management.

Diredor General ofAudit has intimated shottprovision ofRs. 75.92 cr towards interest (calculated @10% p.a.
on Rs.132.83 crfrom 14th JulY 2018 upto 31st March 2024) which willfurther cumulate tillfinalpayment to
L&DO. Futther, STC vide letter dated 20.05.2025 requested L&DO to provide outstanding dues as on date
and the replY is stillawaited. Profits are overstatedand liabilities are understated fry the amountyet to be ascettained
fry Management.

Futther, Compa1!J has not ascertained liabilityI provisional liabilityfor Non-compliance ofthe various conditions
of the Lease deed (including non-deposit of25% of the gross rC11t received q)! STCfrom its tenants) payable to
L&DO for the periodAugust 2018 to March 2025, and the interest thereon. Amount is unascettai11Cd fry the
management. Profits are oventated and liabilities are understated fry the amount yet to be ascel1ained 01
Management.
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6. Trade Payables

Refer Note No.21, All the trade pqyables amounting to Rs. 1,09,778.77 lacs are without a'!J balance
confirmation and are outstandingfOr more than 3 financialyears.

No amount is pqyable to these parties as these are suppliers who have entered into legal agreement with STC
wherein no amount is pqyable to them until and unless the amount is recovered from the blfYer. Thus, the
management has not accorded a'!J treatment to these trade pqyables and to that extent, liabilities are overstated.

7. Statutoty Dues

GST

ReferNote No. 14, The CST input receivable andpqyable balances are not reconciled ry the Group as on March
31,2025. GST input Rs 54.21 lacs - non claimable but no provision has been made. Profit of the Group is
overstated ry the same amount.

Tax Deducted at Source

TDS deducted will be reconciled with fOrm 26AS at the time ofsubmitting Income Tax return, as on the date of
report the complete infOrmation is not available.

No provision has been madefOr TDS default ofRs 11.11 lacs pending, submission ofcomction statements.

8. Penalty Provisions (Refer Note No. 7): STC could not complY with Regulation 17,18,19,20 & 21 of
SEBI (LODR), 2015 due to non-appointment ofIndependent Diredors on the Board ofSTC and Regulation
33 due to non-submission ofconsolidated annualfinancial resultsfOr FY2024-25 due to non-receipt offinancial
statement from STCL Limited i.e. whol!J owmd subsidiatJl compa/!J ofSTC Limited. ConsequentlY, both the
stock exchanges i.e BSE and NSE levied a cumulative fine of:lf 45.17 Lakhs (approx.) on STC fOr non­
compliance ofReg 17,18,19,20,21 & 33 ofSEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. and STC has taken up the
matter with regarding the said non-compliances with its Administrative Ministry and also with the Stock
Exchanges to avoid/waive offthepenalties imposed in this regard. Based on precedence, STC is hopeful ofgetting
waiver, hence no provision (being ofcontingent nature) has been made. Profit ofthe compa'!J is overstated and the
liabilities are understated ry the same amount.

9. Investments (Refer Note No.8)

• NSS Satpura Agro Development Company Ltd. (Joint Venture) : The compa/!J has
been strike offas per MCA site. Howevet~ still it is appearing in the books ofaccounts ofSTC India
Limited. The availabiliry/recovery ofasset and/or Jvrite offcould not be ascertained ry the management.

• Sea Lac Agro Ventures Limited: The latestfinancials oftheIV are not availablefOr verification.
The availabiliry/ recovery ofasset and/or write offcould not be ascertaimd ry the management.

• Maharashtra Small Scale Industries Development: The latestfinamials of the IV are not
availablefOr verification. The availabiliry/ recovery ofasset and/or write offcould not be ascertaimd ry
the management.

• Andhra Pradesh Trade Promotion Corporation Limited: The latestfinancials of the IV
are not available fOr verification. The availabiliry/ recovery of asset and/or write off could not be
ascertained ry the management.
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• Sindhu Resetttlement: The latest finamials 0/ the jV are not available for verification. The
availabili!)/ recovery 0/asset and/or write offcould not be ascertained ry the management.

10. Other Equity (Refer Note No.19):An amount 0/ 'Exchange Fluctuation Reserves: Rs.649.53 lacs" &
"Bonus Reserve: Rs.0.33 lacs" are appearing in the books 0/accounts since long. As confirmed ry management,
these reserves are created long back and details shall be provided in nextfinamialyear. We are unable to ascertain
itspossible impact, ifairy, on the Consolidatedfinandal statements 0/the Group.

11. Other Observations

I: Refer Note No. 24, customer at credit includes amountpqyable to u.P. Government amounting to Rs
603 lacs. As informed ry the management, the The State Trading Corporation 0/India Limited has
made various other claims on U.P Government and accordingjy dues o/Rs. 3382.23 lacs is recoverable
from u.P. Governmentfor which debit note dated March 10, 2014 was raised. However, the said claim
was not recognized in the Consolidated finamial statements 0/ the Group till date, as its ultimate
collection was not certain. In absence 0/ information on acceptabili!) 0/ the said claim ry the UP
Government, we are unable to ascertain its possible impact, if aI?Y, on the Consolidated finandal
statements 0/the Group.

tt. The impact ofthe following observations is not ascertainable: -

a. Refer to Cases and Disputes and matters under Litigation and amounts covered under
Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities, since mqjonry 0/ the matters are su!?judice, it
is notpossible to quantflY the liabilities and the interest obligation ifairy on these cases.

Refers to Note No.38, in respect 0/litigation matters, theirpresent status andprovisioning, if
airy, required and on-going investigations into the alleged irregularities; further, the Group's
past operations have exposed it to the risk 0/extensive litigation and contractual claims from
thirdparties with increased litigation costs notfullY provIdedfor. Due to the range 0/potential
outcomes, voluntary retirement 0/ emplqyees dealing with these cases and the significant
uncertain!) around the resolution 0/various claims, the amount 0/ultimate liabilities, ifat!)!,

to be recorded in the statements as provision is not ascertainable.

b. Refer to Claims recoverable from HHEC & CCIC, iYJ-owner to the proper!) at jmvahar
Vjapar Bhawan, who have not paid their share 0/ expenses to STC since last ma1!Jyears
amounting to Rs. 2693.54 lacs (Rs. 687.69lacsforHHEC & Rs.2005.85lacsforCCIq
as on March 31,2025. The matter is said to be under correspondence 1vith HHEC &CCIC.

STC received a demand o/Rs. 8,002 LacsFom NDMC during 2016-17 towards property
tax for the penod from 1999-2000 to 2016-17 and the same has been allomted
proportionatelY to CCIC & HHEC. Out 0/ total demand 0/ Rs. 8,002 Lacs, STC has
paM Rs. 2,212 Lacs dunng 2016-17 against which CCIC has paid its share ~fRs. 115
Lacs. HoweveJ~ HHEC has not paid its share, hence provision to the extent 0/ share 0/
HHEC out 0/pqyment o/Rs. 2,212 Lacs has alreacjy been made. The matter was pending
at Patiala House Court, Delhi, 1vhich has vide .
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HHEC in pursuance to its Board approval dtd 29.01.2024 submitted a proposal for
surrendering back its share oj4.5% office space inJVB and 64 staffquarters at STC housing
colotry at zero cost to STC in lieu ojoutstanding dues pqyable to STC.

Accordingjy, STC's Board on 08.08.2024 accorded approval to their offer and HHEC has
handed oversecondfloorannexe (3,195.21 sq.ft.) out oj12,667sq.ft. to STC on 26.03.2025.
Since separate valuation oj the 2ndfloor annex is not available and the total dues pending
from HHEC isyet to be reconciled, the necessary accounting entries shall be passed in the
books oj accounts onlY upon vacation/handing oj the entire share as mentioned above ly
HHEC. Rifer Note No. 39

c. Borrowings

Rifer to Note No. 20, the view ojthe default ly the Group in pqying due to interest amount
to the banks, STC was declared NPA. The lender banks have initiated DRTproceedings
against the Group. Tbe memorandum ql the OTS (MOTS) proposal with lender banks is
still in progress

Borrowings have been riflected at Rs.80623.24 lacs. Further, STC is in the process oj
finalizing the OTSproposal with the lender banks, STC haspaid Rs. 200 crores in OTS to
Lead banker Canara Bank after signing ojthe Debt Settlement Agreement (DSA) and No
dues certificate / Settlement Certijkate ly all the six lender banks on 11.07.2025 in order to
complete the One-time settlement (OTS) with the lender Banks. Further, the case filed ly
Lead banker Canara Bank in DRT (case no. TA/18/2022) has been Jvitbdrawn on
15.07.2025. The status ojcompletion ojOTS and withdrawal ojcase in DRT has also been
infortned to MOC&I. Accounting effect ojthe OTS will be riflected in the next quarter ended
30.09.2025.

With respect to the subsidiary company (as reported by its Auditor is reproduced below):

1. Non-Current assets held for disposal
Attention is drawn to Note No.4 ojNotes to financial statements which states that non-current assets held

for disposal. AsperNote NO.3. 1(e) in the notes to accounts it isfU11her stated that thefinancials statements
for theyear 2024-25 have beenprepared on realization basis (non-going concern assumption) and the current
assets have been classified as heldfor disposal. Therefore, all the assets heldfor disposal have been carried at
their estimated realizable values. However, all the non-current assets heldfor disposal i.e. Proper(y, Plant
and Equipment in absence oj atry report for realizable value has been stated at their respective historical

values/carrying values as per books ojaccounts as on 31.03.2025 and not on realization basis. This is
non-compliance of the accounting polic~ and we are unable to comment on the
impact ofthe same on financial statements.

Further there is also non-compliance ojrequirements ojIND AS-105

Asper IND AS-105, 'Non-Current Assets heldfor sale and discontinued Operations': It requires that
assets that meet the criteria to be heldfor sale should be measured at lower ojcarrying amount andfair value
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less costs to sell and to be separatelY presented in the Balance sheet and also reSt/It rfdisamtinued operations

to be presented separatelY in the statement rfPrqfit and Loss.

However, no fair value estimation rf the non-ttll1'Imt assets held for mle have been catTled out as on 31"

march, 2025. Thus, there is also non-compliclJIce rfIND AS-l05 applicable to the Group

2. Borrowings
RifeI' to Note NO. 20, the vielJJ rf the default ~)' the STCL in pqying due to interest amount to the banks,

STCL was declared as NPA. The consortium qfiendm has taken over the symbolicpossession rfthe assets

rf the compatry during theyear 2011-12 and initiated legalproceedings against the compatry for recovery rf

dues and legalproceedings are pending before the DRT The compatry has accountedfor interestpqyable on
the borrowing tillFY 2018-19 and disclosed as otherfinamial liabilities as interest accmed but not due on
borrOlJJings.

The compatry has not provided interest fiWJJ FY 2018-19 on Cash Credit and Packing Credit advances

availedfrom the consortium rfbanks on the grolmd that the prevailing rate rfinterest is 10lv in comparison
to interestprovided in earlieryears and confil7JJation rfbalance from the banks has not been received ~)I the

compatry. Due to non-provisioll rfinterest, the loss has beell understated 01 Rs.l, 10,14,54,58,452 / - IJJith

consequential reduction in bank it'abiiities.HOIvever, the compat!)I has sholvn the above amount as a
contingent liabiliry in the notes to accounts 110 39.3.

3. Other current Assets

Attention is drawn to Note no. 14(F), Compatry has treated the Service 'Tax Credit Receivable rf

Rs.13,96,838/ - alld VAT credit Receivable rfRs.7,91,704/ - as CUJTent asset. However as per sectioll

140 rfCGST Act, 2017, time limit for claiming the input tax credit as transitiollal credit under earlier

tax regime has been expired Helice compatry canllot claim the said input tax receivable under GST

4. Trade Payables
Attention dralJJII to Note NO.21 - 'Trade pqyables, Trade pqyables includes a sum rfRs. 1,24,07,000/­

and are without atry balance confil7Jlations and are canied in the books rfaccounts form 2007-08 olllJJards.

5. Statutory Dues

Tax deducted at Source

In respect rfthe TDS deducted ry the tetlatltJ~ STCL has not accountedfor the TDS momiled IJJith amount

as appeatillg ill rrmn 26AS available 011 the portal amounting to RJ'. 36,36,847/-

It had beell further observed that the total TDS default rfRs. 3,82,150/ - is appearillg ill the Income Tax

(TRACES) portal, No provision has been made for this demalld alld also not disciosed as contingent

liabiliry
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Year wise bifurcation of the defaults is as under: -

TDS D~faultsas Income Tax

TDS:
TDS Receivable as per

appearing in TRACES
Demands as

books ofAccounts
portal appearing in

Income Tax portal
FY2004-05 - - 1,50,556
FY2005-06 4,71,742 - -
FY 2006-07 3,41,727 - -

FY2007-08 - 32,690 83,35,437
FY2008-09 - 27,820 -
FY2009-10 - 1,98,060 53,14,460
FY2010-11 4,00,095 9,120 -

FY2011-12 3,49,348 450 -
FY 2012-13 6,37,865 1,470 -

FY2013-14 5,33,337 50,230 -

tT2014-15 - 4,840 -

FY2015-16 - 2,620 -

FY2016-17 1,35,595 - -

FY 2017-18 35,430 240 -

FY2018-19 29484 - -

FY2019-20 1,15,725 4,040 -

FY2020-21 92,224 24,650 -

FY2021-22 1,12,454 25,020 -
tT2022-23 2,81,671 580 -

FY2023-24 84,087 320 -

FY2024-25 16,063 - -
Grand Total 36,36,847 3,82,150 1,38,00,453

We are, therefore, unable to comment upon the effect ofthe above in the financial statements relating to
TDS reconciliations not carried out.

6. Cash and Bank Balances
The compa'!J has shown the bank balances in the financials for which the statements are not available to
verijj the correctness of the balances. Hence the balances of the foll02ving bank accounts are suo/ect to
confirmation from banks and hence compa'!J has not restated even the balance appearing in EEFCAIc

BankAccounts
Bank balances as shown in financials as

at 31.03.2025 (in Rs.)
UBI BODI - 29231 1,00,118
Syndicate Bank-BydaJ!.i-12083074973 3,860
Indian Bank-Chennai-CA-758100344 14,818

(31,075)
Canara Bank-5363-Benson Town, BanJ!.alore
SBT-CA NO. 67091529484 1,542
Union Bank ofIndia-00052-EEFC 1,03,168
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The compaf!)! has shown the ma~in monty under lien in thefinancials for which the statements are not available
to verify the correctness rfthe balances. Hence the below balances the are sul:?ject to confirmation from banks

Bank balances as shown in financials as
BankAccounts at31.03.2025 (in Rs.)
Mary,in FIc-60029 3,41,000
Mary,in on Guarantee Issued-l/13 49,821
Mary,in on Guarantee Issued-l/131 5,29,120
TDR - Vijaya Bank 8,75,801

Therifore, we are not able to comment upon the iffect rfthis on thefinamial statement in the absence rfcomplete
details regarding thisfixed deposit, EEFC account balance, bank balances and ma~in monty.

7. Other observations

1. Attention is drawn to Note No.54 rfNotes to financial statements which states that, the balances in the
accounts rfTrade Receivable, Trade Pqyables, Business Associates, Securiry Deposits, Other Creditors
and EA1D are under litigation and no confirmation has been receivedfrom the parties.

2. Gratuity & leave encashment has not been provided as per the provisionsfor theyear.

3. Income tax returnsfrom the Assessmentyear 2023-24 & onwards notfiled.

4. Attention is drawn to Note No.2(ii) rf Notes to financial statements JvhidJ states that the compaf!)!
continue as a non-operating company for the time being and to prepare the accounts from
the F.y. 2021-22 onward on non-going concern basis hence accrued expenses asper theprovisions

has not been providedfor theyear.

5. Attention is drawn to Note No 11 (h) rfNotes to financial statements JvhidJ states that Two emplqyees
when appliedfor VCC had been paM in excess amounting to Rs 4,52,929 andfor which the compaf!)!

hasfiled recovery suits which ispendingfor disposal.

6. Attention is drawn to Note No 10(b) rf Notes to financial statements which states that

Rs.6,85,78, 122/-[exduding interest] was due from one rfthe business associate, the matter was referred
to arbitration. In arbitral aJvard rfRs,8.00 Crore was passed infavour rfSTCL, Which was challenged
ry the parry bifore city civil court, Bangalore. STCL hadfiled oljections to appeal and after hearing the
matter the appealfiled ry the party against arbitral award was dismissed bank guarantee rf Rs,8.00
Crore was emhased ry the compal!J. }<urther the parry hasgonefor an appeal bifore Hon'ble High Court
rfKarnataka which ispendingfor di.rposal. We have aqjusted monty received to the existing debit balances

and hence balanteS are nil as on date. Out q[the total r8 crores, r5.61 crores Jvas appropriated towards

amounts receivable ry the banks, while r 1.87 crores was allocated to the compaf!)! for operating expenses.

7. Attention is drawn to Note No 24(d), Grant has been receivedfrom VITC (VisveJvara!ya InduJtrial
Trade Centre) under ASIDE Scheme amounting Rs.l,20,00,000/-for Export Promotion during the
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year 2006-07 towards ChilIYftds Processing Centre-Byadgi. Grant in Aid has been received amounting to

Rs, 6,29,00,000/- during the year 2008-09, fOr Steam Sterilization plant at Chinddawara. The
compa'!J has amortized depreciation on assets fOr which grants were received, at WD V method and has
reduced the samefrom the grants. However,from the FY 2019-20 no grants has been amortized since the

possession ofsuch assets fOr such grant availed has been taken over qy the mnsortium oflenders.

Due to non-availabiliry ofconditions relating to disposal or compulsory acquisition, we are unable to opine

on the treatmentgiven qy the compa1!J in the jinancial statement on the un-amortizedportion ofgrant to
the tune ofRs.1, 10,09,432.

The impact ofthe foUowing observations is not ascertainable: -

t. Rifer to Cases and Disputes and matters under Litigation and amounts covered under Contingent Assets

and Contingent Liabtlities, since mqjoriry of the matters are suo/udice, it is not possible to quantijj the
liabilities and the interest obligation ifa'!J on these cases.

ii. Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw Attention to Note No. 1 ofthe notes to jinancial statements, which states that, the accounts of the
Compa'!J are prepared based on the assumption that the Compa'!J is not a going concern due to fOllowing
reasons:

a. The Shareholders ofthe Compar!)! in their Extraordinary General Meeting held on 12.09.2013 had approved
winding up ofthe Compa'!J under 433 (a) ofthe Companies Ad, 1956.

b. Department ofCommerce, Ministry ofCommerce and Industry vide its letter dated 26.08.2013 had convryed
approval of the Union Cabinet fOr winding up of the Compa'!J and to offer Voluntary Separation Scheme
(VSS) to the Emplq)lees.

c. Compa'!J hadjiled winding up petition bifore the Hon'ble High Court ofKarnataka on 26.11.2013.

AccordinglY, the Compa'!J has drmvn the accounts on Liquidation basis i.e., assets have been revalued on
realizable basis, whereas the liabtlities towards the bank have been stated at book value, in view oflegal cases
initiated qy the banks against the Compa1!JfOr recovery oftheir dues and all other liabilities at their settlement
value.

These events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainry exists that mC!J cast significant doubt on the
compa'!J's abiliry to mntinue as agoing concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect ofthis matters.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our

report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
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the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the lCAl's Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

opinion (including the basis for the qualified opinion).

Key Audit Matters:

Kry audit matters are those matters that, in our professionaljudgment, were if most significance in our audit if the
consolidated financial statements if the current period. These matters were addressed in the context if our audit if the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Emphasis ofMatter

WIth respect to subsidiary company (as reported byits Auditor is reproduced below)

1. Attmtion is drawn to Note No. 22 ifthe Notes to financial statements which states that, Interestpqyable ifRr.
33,78,29,51,648/- on theprincipal amount due to the banks is am'ved on the basis ifthe interest rates disclosed
in the Debt Recovery Tribunal application filed 0J banks. No Interestprovision have been made 0J the compa,!]
for the currentfinancialyear on the ground that the prevailing rate ifinterest is too low in comparison to interest
provided in earlieryears and Cotifirmation ifAccounts has not been receivedfrom the banks.

2. Attention is drawn to Note No. 58 to Notes tofinancial statements which states that, in cases where the Compa,!)!
has made provision for Doubtful Debts, no further interest/addition matlin ifprofit is recognized eifter thry have
been classified as doubtful debts. Asfullprovision will be made earlier, the same will be credited to Profit & Loss
Account (Note No 34) 0J reducing the provision. OnlY after the full receipt if the balance outstanding as per
books, the interest/additional matlin ifprofit will be recognized on cash basis.

3. Attmtion is drawn to Note No. 39(iii) (f, g and h) Jvhere it is mentioned that the Compa,!)! has made provision
forpqyment ifinterest asper the claim made 0J the cons011ium banks in the DRT up to 20.07.2011 andfurther
interest areprovided at the rates mentioned in the DRT application 0J the banks. Exass interest / penal interest
/ liquidated damages claimed 0J the banks as shown in their balance confirmation certificate amotmting to Rr.
165,83,94,543/- (included in Note 39) has been shown under contingent liabiliry. However, the contingent
liabiliry as shmvn in Notes consists onlY ifthose banks Jvho havegiven their balance confirmation certificate.

4. Attention is drawn to Note No. 20(b) ifNotes to Financial Statements which states that, the totalliabiliry to
banks along with interest amounting to Rr. 46,84,61,891/ - is pqyable to consortium ifseven banks and UCO
Bank in respect if devolved LCs/Packing credits since 2008-09. Confirmation ifoutstanding interest has not
been receivedfrom the banks. The Compa,!)! has considered interestpqyable as claimed at the rates disclosed in
their DRT application filed 0J UCO Bank and cOlJJ'ortium ifother Banks. Cash credit/short term loan is as
per the DRT (Debt Recovery Tribunal) application filed 0J consortium if seven banks and UCO Banks on
20.07.2011. The above loan has been classified as NPA 0J consortium banks and UCO Bank. The Compa,!)!
has created pari-passu chatle on current assets in javor if the banks and also surrendered the docummts if
immovable property situated at Chindwara (3.239 hectares), Byadgi (5Acres), Siddapura (2.20 acres) and
Madikeri (0.50 acres) in favor if the Bankers. In view ifthe immovable properties ifSTCL given as securiry,
an estimated amount ifRr. 1,82,69,500/- out ifthe total advances can be considered as secured. The cons011ium
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ofbank and UCO Bank hasfiled cases separatefy against the Compatry lvith the DRY, wherein lvith regard to
UCO Bank recovery case, DRT has passed an order dtd 29.09.2015 for recovery ofRs. 148,18,29,855/-,
however, the Compatry has challenged DRT order at DRAT, Chennai. The banker has also issued notice u/s
13(2) ofSecuritization and Reconstruction ofFinandalAssets and enforcement ofSecuri!J Interest Act, 2002.
FU11her based on the above, the bankers have issued two Possession Notices one on 26.10.2011 on Factory Land
and Building located at Byadagi and another on 17.11.2011 on Factory Land and Building located at
Chhindwara, Madl?Ja Pradesh. FU11her consoJ1ium ofbank led ry SBI has taken thepl?Jsicalpossession ofland,
building andplant and machinery at Byadagi and Chhindawara.

5. Attention is drawn to Note No. 8.2 ofthe Notes to finandal statements with respect to investment in Shares of
NSS Satpura Agro Development Corporation Ltd, which states asfollows:
The Joint Venture Compatry has incurred losses and its cumulative losses is Rs. 30,13,372/- up to 31st March
2013 and details ofsubsequent period are not available, the Compatry has written oJJRs. 7,53,343/- towards
permanent diminution in its investment value up to earlieryears. The auditedjinandal statements ofNSS Satpura
are not available for the subsequentperiods. The Compatry Board approved in its 142nd Board Meeting held on
24.10.2013 for withdrmvalfrom the Joint Venture Compatry NSSSADCL

6. Attention is drawn to Note. No. 39.3(f) which states that, subsequent to jiling ofarbitration petition ofM/s
Shiva Shankar Minerals Private Limited against STCL and on completion of arbitration process, Rs.
6,06,69,338/ - including legalJees ofRs. 26,55,114/ - was awarded infavor ofM/s Shiva Shankar Minerals
Private Limited, STCL hasfiled an appeal against the arbitration award, which is pending before the Ci!J Civil
CouJ1, Bangalore.

7. Attention is drawn to Note No.4 and 20 Cash credit advancesfrom the bank are se(ured ry paripasu charges
over the assets ofthe compatry. The ConsoJ1ium ofLenders has taken over the rymbolicpossession ofthe assets of
the compatry during theyear 2011-12 and initiated legalproceedings against the compatryfor re(overy ofdues. The
legalpro(eedings are pending before the DRT. Subsequentfy during the finandalyear 2019-20. ConsoJ1ium of
the bankers has taken over the pl?Jsicalpossession ofthe assets and initiated the proceedings ofauction under the
provisions ofSARFAESIACT, 2002. However, the value at which the banks are likefy to auction/re(eive the
bidsfor the above assets were not known at thatpoint of time. Hence compa'?J had reduced the value ofassets at
book value and also reduced the same from botTowings to ConsoJ1ium ofbanks on 31st March 2020. However,
during the jinan(ialyear 2020-21, the compatry obtained the exact value at whi(h the assets were auctioned was
made available. The BotT01vings from ConsoJ1ium ofBanks has been reduced ry the sale pro(eeds andprofit on
the sale of asset has been recorded Compatry has transJetTed the revaluation reserve created on these assets to
retained earnings.

8. Attention is drawn to Note No. 13, Compal!J has TDS Re(eivable ofRs. 36,36,847/ -from the 1-'[2004-05
but the same is suiject to outstanding demand and litigation /:} Income Tax Authori!J. Hence there are mere
(hances ofgetting the refund ofsame. A detailed note ry giving the disclosure of outstanding demands has been
mentioned in the Finamials and also the same has been re(orded as (ontingent liabili!J.

9. Attention is drawn to Note no 39(iii), the mmpal!J has mentioned CST Liabili!J on the sale ofplant and
machinery under Contingent liabili!J ofRs. 13,77,095. Proceeds from the bank has been aqjusted with the loan
as per the Se(tion 13 ofSARFAESI Act, Hen(e the sale deed executed between the lender and btdder has not
been made available to the (ompatry and hence mmpatry is not in the position to delide whether the CST Liabili!J
on sale ofplant and ma(hinery is on the compa'?J or bank.

10. The compa'?J has confirmed that, thry have not re(eived fund statement from uc. 1-'uJ1her the compal!J has
mentioned that Actuarial Valuation has not been carried outfor the Finandal Year 2024-25 ry the compal!J,
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hence provision for theyear is not made. Hence the disclosures mentioned in Note No 46, related to gratui!J are
su~ject to fund statement ly Uc.

11. Attention is drawn to Note no 46 & 30, the compatry has mentioned that Actuarial Valuation has not been
camed outfor the Financial Year 2024-25 ly the compat!J, hence provision for theyear is not made, Therefore,
we are not able to comment upon the ~ffict oj this on the financial statement in the absence oj complete details
regarding this Disclosure as per IND AS 19 Emplqyee Benefits.

12. Restating ojfinancials as per Ind AS 8 due to priorpeliod en-ors.

a) Attention is drawn to Note No 26, Compatry has kept rzxed Deposit. The intereJ't accruing on FD is
recorded in books ojaccounts asper Form 26AS, as the bank account has been ceased in the month ojMarcb
2023. At the time oj closure ojbooks ojaccounts for the FY 2023-24, tbe interest related to Q4 was not
appearing in tbe 26AS. The same was appearing in 26AS 1y QI ojFY 2024-25.

b) The exactproceeds from tbe sale ojassets situated at Byadagi and Chindawara was not made available fry
the lenders to the compatry whicb was auctioned under SARFAESI Act in the FY 2019-20, h01vever tbe
same was made available during tbe rr 2020-21, as the sale value ojassets are in excess ojBook value, it
has transferred tbe amount ojRs.I,36,37,631 in the revaluation Reserve to Retained Earning ly restating
tbe priorperiodfigure ly considering it as priorperiod error.

13. Tbe compatry bas sbown tbe bank balances in tbefinancials for whicb the statements are not available to vertjj the
correctness oj tbe balances. Hence tbe balances oj tbe following bank accounts are su~ject to confirmation from
banks and bence compatry bas not restated even the balance appearing in EEFCAIc

BankAccounts
Bank balances as shown in financials as at

31.03.2025 (in Rs.)
UBI BODI - 29231 1,00,118
Syndicate Bank-Bydayi-12083074973 3,860
Indian Bank-Chennai-CA-758100344 14,818

Canara Bank-5363-Benson Town, BatlJ!.alore (31,075)
SBT-CA NO. 67091529484 1,542
Union Bank ofIndia-00052-EEFC 1,03,168

14. Tbe compatry bas sbown tbe matJ!,in monry under lien in tbe financials for whicb the statements are not available
to vertfy tbe correctness oftbe balances. Hence tbe below balances the are subject to confirmation/rom banks

Bank balances as shown in financials as at
BankAccounts 31.03.2025 (in Rs.)
Marxin Flc-60029 3,41,000
Ma1J!.in on Guarantee Issued-VB 49,821
Marxin on Guarantee Issued-VB 1 5,29,120
TDR - Vijaya Bank 8,75,801

Our Opinion is not modified in respect ojtbeJe matters.

Information Other than the Financial Statements andAuditor's Report thereon

The Group's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Annual Report on CSR
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activities, Report on Corporate Governance, Secretarial Auditor's Report Information, but does n9t

include the Consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Management

Discussion and Analysis, Annual Report on CSR activities, Report on Corporate Governance, Secretarial

Auditor's Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors' report.

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the

other information identified above when it becomes available to us and, in doing so, consider whether

the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated [mancial statements or our

knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read such other information as and when made available to us and if we conclude that there is

a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with

governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Group's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated financial

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes in

equity) and cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in

India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read

with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. This responsibility also

includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for

safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial

statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

Management has prepared these financial statements on non-going concern basis as per decision of the

Board of Directors.

Board ofDirectors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process. However,

it is to point out that there are no Full Time Working Directors in the Group as on 31st March, 2025 and

the Group is functioning only with the assistance of Independent Directors and Director (Finance) on

Additional Charge.
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Auditors'Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated flllancial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. \X1e also:

• Identified and assessed the risks of material misstatement of the flllancial statements, whether due to

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence

that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtained an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Concluded on the appropriateness of management's use of the non-going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we

conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to

the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.

However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the flllancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

However the financial statements of the Group have been prepared on non-going concern basis as

decided by the Board of Directors.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that

were of most significance and importance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period

and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or

regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we

determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Other Matters:

• We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiary namely STCL Limited included in the
financials of the Group where financial statements reflect total assets ofRs. 134.41 lacs as at Mar
31,2025, total revenue ofRs.1.19 lacs and net cash outflows amounting to Rs.62.94 lacs for the
year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These financial
statements have been audited by other auditors.

• Non - compliance of Regulation 33 SEBI (LODR): As per Reg 33 ofSEBI (LODR), 2015,

every listed Group shall publish its Financial Results within 60 days from the end of the last

quarter, and in case of non-compliance of Reg 33 of SEBI (LODR), 2015, Regulatory penalty

will be levied on The State Trading Corporation of India Limited by each of the stock exchanges

separately.

• Statutory Committee: As confirmed by STC management, the Group is unable to re-constitute

the Statutory Committees i.e. Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee,

Nomination & Remuneration Committee, CSR Committee and Risk management

Committee due to non-availability of Independent Directors on the Board of the Group

Our opinion on consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

1. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, except for the matters

referred in "Basis for Qualified Opinion"- Impact of which is partly non-ascertainable,
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and

if not, the details thereof and the effect of such information on the financial statements.

11. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group, except

for the matters referred in "Basis for Qualified Opinion", so far as it appears from our
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examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have

been received from the Group.

111. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and loss including the Statement of Other

Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt

with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

lV. In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian

Accounting Standards, except for the Basis for Qualified opinion, specified under Section 133

of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

v. The going concern matter described under "Material uncertainty in relation to Going Concern"

paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Group.

V1. Pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by the Ministry of

Corporate Affairs, Government of India, provisions of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Act

are not applicable to the Group, being a Government Company;

vii. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

"Annexure A". Our report expresses a qualified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Group's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

V111. Pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June 2015 issued by the Ministry of

Corporate Affairs, Government ofIndia, provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013,

are not applicable to the Group, being a Government Company; and

lX. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to

the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Group has not been able to disclose the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its

financial statements, refer note 38 & 39 to the f111ancial statements.

b. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any

material foreseeable profits.

c. During the year, the Group has made no transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund due to

heavy accumulated profits. Therefore, question of delay in transferring amounts, required to be

transferred, by the Group does not arise.

d. i) The respective Management of the Parent Company and its subsidiary, whose f111ancial statements

have been audited under the Act, have represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other

than as disclosed in notes to accounts, no funds (which are or in the aggregate)
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have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other

sources or kind of funds) by the Group to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity

('Intermediaries') with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary

shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Parent Company or any of such subsidiary ('Ultimate Beneficiaries')

or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

ii) The respective Management of the Parent Company and its subsidiary, whose financial statements

have been audited under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief,

no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Parent

Company or any of such subsidiary from any person or entity, including foreign entity ('Funding Parties')

with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Parent Company or any of

such subsidiary shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified

in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ('Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 111 the

circumstances performed by us, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing

has come to our attention that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and

(ii) of Rule 11 (e) as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

e. There has been no dividend declared during tlle year.

f. According to the information and explanation provided to us and based on our examination which

included test checks, the Group have used accounting software (Tally Prime) for maintaining its books

of account, which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated

throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software. Audit trail at

database level is enabled in Tally Software for all the relevant transactions recorded in the software and

the audit trail feature has not been tampered. The audit trail has been preserved by the Group as per the

statutory requirements for record retention at application level and for database level with effect from

its enablement.
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According to the information and explanation provided to us and based on our examination which
included test checks, Audit trail (edit log) is being maintained at application level and for database level
in respect of, "Performance Management System", Payroll Software and "Leave Management System"
upto 31.03.2025 which are not interfaced with each other as well as the accounting software. As a result
of above, Manual Accounting entries are being made on periodical basis in the Tally ERP Accounting
software.

For P V A R & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED~vv~~~~~~~~~~~

FRN No. 005223

(CA RUCHI AG~ft!i;iG):;;T,Q';;',;\:;

Partner
Membership No. 504134

UDIN: ~S!:OLfI3'18(n67Z6Jl()763'D
Place: New Delhi
Date: 17.09.2025
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"Annexure A" to INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to Clause (vii) of Paragraph 2 under the heading of "Report on other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements" of Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of the
State Trading Corporation of India Limited on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended 31st March 2025

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of The State Trading
Corporation of India Limited ("the Group") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of

the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Group's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('reA!').

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial

controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,

including adherence to Group's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of

frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation

of reliable f1t1ancial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's internal f1t1ancial controls over f1t1ancial

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on

Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,

2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of

Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those

Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal f1t1ancial controls over

financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material

respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial controls system over f1t1ancial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal

financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial

controls over f1t1ancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
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procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of d1e financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Group's internal fmancial controls system over fmancial reporting

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Group's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of fmancial statements for

external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Group's internal

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Group;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and

expenditures of the Group are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and

directors of the Group; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of un-authorized acquisition,

use, or disposition of the Group's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (IFCFR)

Because of the inherent linUtations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal fmancial

controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control

over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

a) STC is maintaining "Petjo17JJance Management System': Pqyroll Software and "Leave Management System" which are
not interfaced with each other as well as the accounting software. As a result 0/above, ManualAccounting entries are being
made on periodical basis in the Talfy ERP, Accounting soft1vare used ry Parent Compatry and its subsidiary.

b) Lack 0/iffective semtitry 0/accounting ledgers asfar as 0/s liabilities/Claims recoverable/ Securi!J Deposits is seen as thry

are not updated.

c) Manner 0/maintenance 0/FixedAssets Schedule & register need to be strengthened.
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d) Lack ofproper tontract management is noticed 117e:spective oftompletion ~(contracts the EMD/ Setttri(y deposits are still

being Ivithheld in the books 0J the Parent Compat!)I and its mbsidiary.

e) Lack ofcontrol over the renelval ofRent/lease Agle:ementJ on timeb baJiJ. There ate: numerous ofaglCfements Ivhich have

not been reJ2e2ved over a longpen'od

j) Inif(ective ilJJplelJJentation ofactotmtingpolif!Y in balance confirmation oftrade meivable & vendor balance, iJ notim!' The
balanceJ outstanding in the trade receivable account i'annot be Ie:tomiled in customer/ bookJ as balance cOI!ftmJationJ an

not availablejor these customers.

g) As there are no proper Full Time working DirectOJ:r in the Parent Compat!} and its subsidiary, and there is also lack ~(

senior managementpersonnel in the Group, all decisions and matters requiring imlJJediate attention are kept on hold and

there is inif(ective management control in the Pate:nt Compat!)I and itJ Jub,ridiary.

A 'material Iveakness' is a drifidenry, or a combination ofdrifidencies, in internalfinamial tontrol overfinandal Ie:porting,
Juch that thele: iJ a reaJonablepossibility that a materialmi,rJtatement ~(the Group '.I' annual or interim.ftnandal JtatelJJents

Ivill not be prevented or detected on a timeb baJi,r.

With respect to subsidiary company (as reported by its Auditor is reproduced below):

z. The COlJJPat!} did not have appropliate Internal tontrol Jvitb mpect to reconciliation ofTrade ReceivableJ, Trade
Pqyable,r, other mditor,r and Bu,rineJJ A,r,ro?iate,r, Jvbicb could Ie:sult in tbe material mi,r,rtatement in book,r of
actounts.

tt. Tbe lease nnt ~(,rteam ,rterilization unit 10i'ated in ChindJvara, Madl?ya Prade,rb Jva,r terminated on 03.02.2018

Jv.e.j 31.01.2015 due to non-peJjormance. The Compat!) has initiated legalpromJjone:tovery ofit,r due,r.

ttt. Tbe Board ofDirectors ofthe Compat!} had delegated {e:rtain powm to tbe managing director oftbe tompat!} vide
1071h board resolution dated 271h ] anuary 2006. HOJvevel~ lJO nview oftbe same ba,r been made JubJequentb till

date. PresentDJ, a General Manager i,r looking after tbe activitie,r of the Compat!} and reporting to tbe board of
Directors ofthe Compat!y.

lV. Tbe tompat!} has notprovided intemt during tbe'year on Leub endit and Packing endit advanm availedfrom

the con,r0J1ium ofbank,r on tbe ground that the prevailing rate ofintere,rt is 10JV in tompari,ron to intere,rtprovided

in earlier,YearJ and confirmation ~( balance from the bankJ ha,r not been received ~y tbe compat!). Due to non­

provz:rion of intemt, the lo,r,r ha,r been zmdmtated 0J R.r. 39,73,57,33,294 / - witb con,requentialredtution in

bank liabilitie,r.

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control

over f111ancial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of

company's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely

basis.
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In our opinion, except for the possible effects of material weaknesses described above on the

achievement of objectives of control criteria, the company has maintained, in all material respects,

an adequate internal financial control over financial reporting and such internal financial control

over fmancial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal

financial control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering the

essential of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal financial controls

over Financial reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, (including the basis for the qualified opinion), the Group has, except for effects of the

material weaknesses described above on achievement objectives of the control criteria, in all material

respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal

fmancials controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2025, based on

the internal control over fmancial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls

Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

We have, to the extent possible, considered the material weaknesses identified and reported above in

determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2025

Consolidated financial statements of the Group, and these material weaknesses are not likely to affect

our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements of the Group.

For P V A R & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN No. 005'Z2~,~:':;~7',
(CA RUlCH][:A(jfiltw~[;r·t:;;·:

Partner
Membership No. 504134
UDIN: :< ~ S' 0 L.f/ '":> 4 IS nUn 2- en 0 7 (, 3 0

Place: New Delhi
Date: 17.09.2025

Page 24 of24



P V A R &. ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

48, 1st Floor, Navyug Market, Ghaziabad - 201 001 (U.P.)
Telefax: 0120-2790454, 0120-4374021
E-mail: pvarassociates@gmail.com
Website: www.pvarassociates.com

Independent Auditor's Limited Review Report on Audited Consolidated accounts for the Quarter
& Year Ended 31.03.2025 on the Consolidated Financial Results of The State Trading Corporation
of India Limited pursuant to Regulation 33 of the SEBI (! ;'3tin~ Obli,,"'~ions and Reporting
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, As Amended "

To the Board of Directors of
The State Trading Corporation of India Limited

1 W';:; h,~ve reviewed tte accompanying statement of audited Consolidated financial results of The State

Tr'~j!n~ ('.' r~(jT~tj{m oflndia Limited ( hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company") and

it,,: "ul:.~ida~ (lhe Holdbg Company and its subsidiary "STCL Limited", the parent and its subsidiary

~':c t-.}ge~her !"derred t~ as the "Group"), for the quarter ended 31 st March, 2025 ("the Statement"),

attached herewith, be~ng .mbmitted by the Holding Company pursuant to the requirement of regulation
33 of"th~ 85BI (Listing Cbligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, as amended ("the

Listmg ~eguldoi1s")induding relevant circulars issued by SEBI from time to time.

~.__ : .. :. ~oO;_:t is the w::iJcnsiLT:y .::,fth~ Group's ManagemerJ and ha!" b~en approved by the Board of

,r~~ . "." C(,.::·,.~~d':"'" r.7:G.:.'~!"d ~f Directors and h2.S been prepared in accordance with recognized anJ
,1easurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard 34 prescribed under Section 133 of

the Companies Act, 20D and other recognized accounting practices and policies. Our responsibility is

to express an opinion on the Statement based on our review.

3 We conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagement (SRE) 2410

"Review ofInterim Financial Information performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity", issued

by the Institute of Chartered A('countr~tsof India. A review of interim financial information consists

ofm~king inquiries, p"imarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying

analytical and other review procedures. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of Group personnel

and analytical procedurt;s applied to financial data and thus provide less assurance than an audit.

·1 Y!e a~s _ pe;.orJKd p_·o·::;e~\L·es ia c~cordancewith the circular issued by the SEBI under Regulation 33

(:3) of the SEBI (Listing Ob1igatkns and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended, to

t'-:e c.Gent applicable.

5 ilerer to Note Nc. 1 i:! SLtelr.erLt 0f Audited (Review) Financial Results for the Quarter & year ended

M ..lfch 31 st 202,j tn'lt these ;jnall~:2i results haue been prepared in accordance with accounting policy

on a non-going C0nCt:fL bc:s~~.

I

DelhIH.O.
DelhiB.O.
JaipurB.O.
AssamB.O. :

W Z -·2 48, Plot No. - 7, I n d e r pur i, New Del h i 1 1 0 0 1 2
201, V 4, Mayur Plaza DDA LSC, Mayur Vihar, Phase-1, Delhi - 110 091
Bansal Chambers, B-66, Shopping Center, Behind Dena Bank, Amba Bari, Jaipur - 302039
Sundari Complex, G. F. Road, Benganakhowa, Golaghat (Assam) - 785 621



6 Basis for Qualified Opinion

a) Non provision in respect of the items / matters as indicated below, total amount not
ascertainable for the quarter ended 31.03.2025

1. Further; lease periodjOrplot at Mallet Bunder; Mumbai Port Trust has alrea4Y expired and the land has
been handed over to Mumbai Port Trust. Sumnder certificate has been executed on 12.11.2021. But this
still continues to be shown as non-cumnt assets heldfOr sale. Thus, non- cumnt assets heldfOr sale has been
overstated !?y Rr. 11.67 lacs. It will also have consequential impact on the Statement ofProfit and Lou
account resulting into overstatement ofprofit byRs. 11.67/acs.

Further the farm tanks installed at Mal/et Bunder amounting to Rr. 14.84 lacs have also been handed over
on as is where is basis. The Group has not raised a'!} debit notefOr the same and thus non-cumnt assets are
being overstated byRs. 14.84/acs.

Further to this, the auction of the STC assets was conducted !?y MBPT on 11.06.2024 and the amts were
ultimatefy soldfOr Rr. 355 lacs, with the previousfyfOifeited EMD ofRr. 25 Lacs. STC calculated its total
receivables from MBPT at Rr. 418 lacs which includes the sale proceeds, EMD and deposits. STC to set off
this amount against the Rr. 257 lacs Lease rentpCfYable, (amountyet to be reconciled with MBPT) resulting
in a net receivable ofRr. 161 lacsfrom MBPT. ReferNote 57 ofAnnual Consolidated FinancialStatements.

2. Refer Note No.4 of Consolidated audited financial statements for year ending Mar '25, fOr
non-ao/ustment of value/area in Fixed Amts Register against areas acquired b Delhi Metro Rail
Corporation (DMRC) fOr construction ofMetro Station & !?y L&DO jOr widening of the Road during
Asian Games, as well as the flats! area of land sold !?y the compa'!} to The Handicrafts and Handloom
Exports Corporation of India Limited (HHEq fOr its Io/(tillg (O/Ol!). Value of consideration receivod
and/or Receivablefrom NDMC and DMRC is not asci1!'tained I!J Management. Carrying vall/If ofLcasehold
Land atJawahar Vyapar Bhavan is not aet/ustedfOr the Land acquired!?y L&DOjOr handover to NDMC
(1982) & DMRC (2011).

This has resulted into overstatement ofnon-cumnt amts heldfOr sale and consequential impact on profit ofthe
campa'!}, the amount whereofcould not be quantified in absence ofcomplete data from the Compa'!}.

3. All trade receivables amounting to Rs.1,72,533.71 lacs as per Note No.9 of Audited
financial statements have been outstanding for more than 3 years. The Group has made
provisionfor bad and doubtful debts amounting to Rs. 65,551.17 lacs and another sum of
Rs. 106,982.54 lacs have been shown as "Having Significant increase in credit risk" since
the same is under litigation. As confirmed by management, no provision has been made for
the same since the relevant creditors will be paid only after recovery of these trade
receivables, though in most ofthe cases agreements are not tripartite.

Further there has been no significant recovery during the Year ended 31.03.2025 and there
is no major update of legal cases which are pending at various forums. Thus, trade
receivable does not seem to be stated at realizable value less cost to be incurred to recover
these trade receivables. There is also no balance confirmation available for these trade
receivables as on 31.03.2025 and hence we are unable to comment upon the genuineness
and effect ofthe same on the financial statements, ifany.

We are ofthe view that all trade receivables amounting to 1,72,533.71 lacs are considered
doubtful of recovery resulting into short provision for doubtful debts amounting to Rs.
1,06,982.54 lacs. Thus the provision for bad and doubtful debts has been understated by



Rs. 1,06, 982.54 lacs and consequential impact on the statement of Audited Reviewed
financial results resulting into overstatement ofprofit by Rs. 1,06, 982.54 lacs.

Further in case ofMIs Rajat Pharmaceuticals Ltd (RPL), under note no.39, Pt.No.4, who drew
bills ofexchange on STC which were accepted upon receipt ofoverseas buyer'spre-acceptance to STC's
bills ofexchange. However, the foreign buyers defaulted in makingpayments against the export bills
and have gone into liquidation. A sum ofRr.52786 lacs has been admitted by the liquidator ofone
oftheforeign buyer's i.e. Loben Trading Co. Pte. Ltd, Singapore. A Decree ofRr 6247 lacs approx.
has been passed by Hon 'ble Bombay High Court in favour ofSTC against the dues from another
foreign buyer i.e Sweetland Trading Pte Ltd., Singapore. As of current date, RPL has gone into
liquidation and oJIicialliquidator is appointed by Hon 'ble High Court ofBombay. The matter is also
under investigation by CBl. Banks & Financial institutions havefiled legal suit against RPL before
DRTI High Court Mumbai, making STC also aparty to the case claiming Rr. 47647 lacs.

STC has filed non-money claim suit before difftrent Courts at Delhi & Mumbai ftr declaring Bills of
Exchanges ofSTC as null and void and unetifOrceable against STC which were conditionallY accepted qy STC
on back-to-back basis i.e. STC will makepqyment to Rajat/Banks onlY upon receipt ofexportproceedsfrom
the ftreign b1gers.

STC hadfiled 272 Criminal Complaints uls 138 ofN.I Act in New Delhi in 2009 which were
tran.iferredfrom MM Court, Pattala House District Court, New Delhi to the 33rd MM Court,
Ballard Pier, Mumbai. Now the matters have been again tran.iferred to M.M. Court, Ma~aon,
Bombay. STC is claiming an amount or Rr.45,635 lacs from Mis Rajat towards cheque bounce.
Cases are at the stage ofissuing ofsummonslarguments on issuing ofsummons.

Reftr Note No.8 ofUmited Review statements as on 31.03.2025:
In the case ofICICI Bank Ltd. (Bank of Rajasthan Ltd.) v. The State Trading Corporation of
India Ltd. & Ors related to Mis Rajat Pharmaceuticals Ltd., as per the final order dated
11.06.2025 passed by the Hon'ble Debts Recovery Tribunal-II, Delhi, STC has been directed to
deposit a sum ofRr. 2,655 lacs within 30 daysfrom the date oforder. However, STC has challenged
the DRT, Delhi Award and has filed an appeal before DRAT, Delhi on 25.07.2025. STC is
hopeful ofgetting relief, hence no provision (being of contingent nature) has been made. Profit of the
compatry is overstated and the liabilities are understated by the same amount.

Also reftr to Note No. 39, for matters other than RPL, as all these matters are subjudice andlor
under investigation ofCBl and we are unable to comment upon the genuineness and effect ofthe same
on the Financial Statements.

4. Reftr to Note No. 20, the view ofthe default by the Group in paying due to interest amount to the
banks, STC was declared NPA. The lender banks have initiated DRT proceedings against the
Group. The memorandum ofthe OTS (MOTS) proposal with lender banks is still in progress.

Borrowings have been reflected at Rr.80623.24 lacs. Further, STC is in the process offinalizing the
OTSproposal with the lender banks, STC haspaid Rr. 200 crores in OTS to Lead banker Canara
Bank after signing of the Debt Settlement Agreement (DSA) and No dues certificate ISettlement
Certificate by all the six lender banks on 11.07.2025 in order to complete the One-time settlement
(OTS) with the lender Banks. Further, the case filed by Lead banker Canara Bank in DRT (case
no. TAl 1812022) has been withdrawn on 15.07.2025. The status of completion of OTS and
withdrawal ofcase in DRT has also been informed to MOC&l. Accounting effect ofthe OTS will
be reflected in the next quarter ended 30.09.2025



5. Other Financial Assets -Claims Recoverable: For non-provisioning in respect of Claims
Recoverable o/s since last many financial years amounting to Rs. 3157. 74 lacs where no
present status could be ascertained by the management ofthe Group and still not written
off. These are reported by Management in Note No.11 to Audited Financial Statements as
on 31.03.2025. Status is unchanged.

All these current assets are being reflected at their carrying amounts instead of on
realization values.

This has resulted into overstatement of Current assets by Rs. 3157.74 lacs and
overstatement ofprofit by Rs. 3157.74 lacs.

This is non-compliance ofIND AS -36 as no provision has been made for impaired assets.

6. Refer Note No. 38 ofConsolidated audited financial statements for Year ending Mar '25,
There is non-provision ofa demand ofRs. 4, 743 lacs out of total demand received from
Land and Development Office - New Delhi amounting to Rs. 13,283 lacs (for the period
March,2004 to July, 2018) which has resulted in overstatement ofprofit by Rs 4,743 lacs
and understatement ofliabilities. Also, company has not providedfor interest accruing on
the said demand amount. Profits are overstated and liabilities are understated by the
amount yet to be ascertained by Management.

Director General ofAudit has intimated short provision ofRs. 75.92 cr towards interest
(calculated @10%p.a.on Rs.132.83 cr from 14th July 2018 upto 3JS' March 2024) which
will further cumulate tillfinal payment to L&Do. Profits are overstated and liabilities are
understated by the amount yet to be ascertained by Management.

Further, Company has not ascertained liability/provisional liability for Non compliance
ofthe various conditions ofthe Lease deed (including non-deposit of25% ofthe gross rent
received by STC from its tenants) payable to L&DO for the period August 2018 to March
2025, and the interest thereon. Amount is unascertained by the management. Profits are
overstated and liabilities are understated by the amount yet to be ascertained by
Management

7. Statutory Diles - The GST input receivable as per GSTN and payable balances are not
reconciled by the Group as on Mar 3jSl,2025. GST input Rs.54.21 lacs - is non claimable
but no provision has been made. Profit ofthe Group is overstated by the same amount.

8. Non -CurrentAssets held for Sale

i. Refer to Note No.4(a) qf last Audited Financial Statements, Title deeds in the name qf the
company in respect offoiiowingproperties arc not available/not executed Status is unchanged

a) Leasehold Building

i. Leasehold land atJawahar Vyapar Bhawan valued at Rs. 55,929 lacs
ii. Leasehold land at Housing Colony atAurobindo Marg valued at Rs. 12,394 lacs

h) Freehold Building

i. 8 ResidentialF /ats atAsian Games ViI/age Complex, allotted !:?y D DA amollnting to Rs.
2720/acs

ii. 7 apartments in different locations ofMllmbai allloll11lill.~=~
iit: Flats atAhmedabad



9. Penalty Provisions (Refer Note No.7): STC amid 1101 complY /Jlitb Regulatioll 17 18,19,20 &
21 ofSEET (LODR), 2015 dlle to ItOll-appoilltment ofIndej>endmt Directors Oil Ihe Board ojSTC alld
'Regulatioll 33 dUI! to tlOII-S1Ibmissioll ofcOlIJ'olidated aW1IIaJjinamial rofllltsJor ' 2024-25 dm fo 11011­
meipt ojfinamiol statemellt from TCL J..jmited i.e. ,vbolfy o1Jllled SIIbsidiary COmpl"!} ofSTC u'mited.
ConsuqJtentfy, both the !lock eXf:batlge.r i.e ESE and NSE levied a m",,,lativ8 fim: of ~ 45.17 LAkhs
(apprvx) 011 STCforl/on-compliance o/fug 17,18,1920,21 & 33 o/SED! (LODR) Regl/htioll, 2015.
and STC haJ' takon tip the mailer Ivith flJgardillg the said lion-compliances with its Administrative Ministry
and al.ro lIIith the Stock Exchanges to al!oid/wtltil8 offtbepellaltiel impo.fodill fhi! regard. Basod 011 prmdence,
STC ir hope/lllofgettitJg !paiver, hem'e 110 provisioll (being ojcOtltilJge1lt 1/ohm) haJ beon made. Profit of the
compal!y is overstated and the liabilities aI's III/derstdted!ry the Jame amount.

10. Investments (Refer Note No.8)

• NSS Satpura Agro Development Company Ltd. (Joint Venture) : The COIIJPfJ1!y ho.f bem
strike offasPOl' MCA site. However. still it is tippeadlJg il/ the book! ofaCCOfJlltJ ofsrc Illdia Umited.
The availabili!JI/1'I!Covery o/assel tl11d/ or Ivrite qlf''Q/lld 110t be aSC811aimd!ry tbe mtwagellle1lt.

• Sea Lac Agro Ventures Limited: The latesljifltlllCial.r ofIhe I ariJ 1101 d1JtJtwble fir vetijicalion.
The availability/ recovery ofassot al1d/or 1I1111e I!./Jc01lld 110t be ascertailled I?Y Ibe fIIallage1ll6111.

• Maharashtra Small Scale Industries Development: Tbe latest fifl(lllcial.r of tbe ]V are 1/01
available for verification. The availabiliry/recovery ofamI and/or ,utile oJ!c01/ld 1101 be aJcmatill!t1 !ry
the management.

• Andhra Pradesh Trade Promotion Corporation Limited: The latut finamial.r of tbe IV
are not availableJor vcrijicatio1J. The availability/ncavory ofasset and/or write oJ!could not be asm1ail/cd
!?y the management.

• Sindhu Resettdement: The latest financial.r of the IV are not available Jor verification. The
availabiliry/recovery ojasset and/or write oJ!could not be ascertained !ry the management.

Other Equity (Refer Note No.19) : An amollllt of 'Excbango Fluetl/o/ioll Rm17lss: &.649.53 IdC!" &
"Bonus &se17le: Rr.O.33 lacs" are appearillg in the books ofaCC01lllts since Iollg. As corifimud!?y mallogem81lt,
these re.remes arc created long back a1ld delails .,.hall be prollided i1l lIextfillancialyear. We al"S IIlIable 10 t/SCQrtaill
itspossible impact, ~ra'!J, on fbe COl/solidatedfillallcial slatements ojthe Compa'!J.

b) Other Observations: The impact ofthe following observations is not ascertainable:-

i. There are various Cases alld Disputes and matters under Litigation and amounts covered under
Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities. These are reported by Management in Note
No.38 to Audited Financial Statemems as on 31.03.2025. Status is unchanged. Since majority
of the matters are subjudice, it is not possible to quantify the liabilities and the interest
obligation ifany on these cases.

if. Claims recoverablefrom HHEC & CCIC co-owner to the property at Jmllahar Vyapar Bhawan,
who have not paid their share ofexpen e to STC since last many years amounting to to Rs.
2693.54 lacs (Rs. 687.69 lacs for HHEC & Rs.2005.85Iacsfor CCIC) as on March 31,2025.
The matter is said to be under corre 'pondence with HHEC & CCIC.

STC received a demand ofRs. 8,002 Lacsfrom NDMC during 2016-17 towards property tax
for the periodfrom 1999-2000 to 2016-17 and the same has been allocatedproportionately to
CCIC & HHEC. Out oftotal demand ofRs. 8,002 Lacs, STC has paid Rs. 2,212 Lacs during
2016-17 against which CCIC has paid its share ofRs. 115 Lacs. However, HHEC has notpaid
its share, hence provision to the extent ofshare ofHHEC out ofpaymentofRs. 2,212 Lacs has
already been made. The matter was pending at Patiala House Court, Delhi, which has vide its
order dated 24.03.2025.



HHEC in pursuance to its Board approval dtd. 29.01.2024 submitted a proposal for
surrendering back its share of4.5% office space in JVB and 64 staffquarters at STC housing
colony at zero cost to STC in lieu ofoutstanding dues payable to STC.

Accordingly, STC's Board on 08.08.2024 accorded approval to their offer and HHEC has
handed over second floor Annexe (3,795.21 sq.ji.) out of 12,667sq.fl.to STC on 26.03.2025.
Since separate valuation ofthe 2ndfloor annex is nOI available and the total dues pendingfrom
HHEC is yet to be reconciled. the necessary accounting entries shall be passed in the books of
accounts only upon vacation/handing ofthe entire share as mentioned above by HHEC. Refer
Note No. 39

iii. Due to litigation matters, their present status and provisioning, ifany. required and on-going
invesl/gations into the alleged irregularities. further. the Company's past operations have
exposed it to the risk of exten lve litigation and contractual claim from third parties with
increased litigation cost not fully provided /01'. Due to the range of potential outcomes,
volu/'ltQlY retirement of employees dealing with these cases and the significant uncertainty
around the resolution o/various claims, the amount a/ultimate liabilities, ifany, to be recorded
in the statements as provision is not ascertainable.

Our opinion is qualified in respect ofthese above matters.

7 Qualified Opinion

Based on our review conducted as above, except for the facts or possible effects of our observation
stated in Para 5 above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
statement has not been prepared in all material aspects in accordance with the applicable Indian
Accounting standards prescribed U/S 133 of Companies Act,20 13 read with relevant IUles issued there
under and other recognized accounting practices and polici,es generally accepted in India has not
disclosed information required to be disclosed in terms of regulation 33 of SEBT (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 including the manner in which i to be disclosed or
that it contains any material misstatement.

8 Other Matters

• We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiary namely STCL Limited included in the
financials of the Group where financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 134.41 lacs as at
Mar 31, 2025 total revenue of Rs.I.19 lacs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs.62.94 lacs
for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These
financial statements have been audited by other auditors.

• Non - compliance of Regulation 33 SEBI (LODR): As per Reg 33 ofSEBI (LODR), 2015,
every listed company shall publish its Financial Results within 60 days from the end of the last
quarter, and in case of non-compliance of Reg 33 of SEBI (LODR), 2015, Regulatory penalty
will be levied on The State Trading Corporation ofIndia Limited by each ofthe stock exchanges
separately.

• tatutory Committee: As confinned by STC management, the company is unable to re-
consti ute the tatutory Committees Le. Audit Committee, Stakeholders Relationship



Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, CSR Committee and Risk management
Committee due to non-availability ofIndependent Directors on the Board of the Company

Our opinion on consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of these subsidiaries, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors.



THE STATE TRADING CORPORATION OF INDIA LTD
Summarised Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(Rs. Lacs)
Consolidated

Particulars Note No As at As at
Mar 31 2025 Mar 31 2024

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 - -
(b) Capital work-in-progress 5 - -
(c) Investment property 6 - -
(d) Other intangible assets 7 - .
(e) Financial Assets: - -

(i) Investments 8 - -
(ii) Trade receivables 9 - -
(iii) Loans 10 - .
(iv) Other Financial Assets 11 - -

(f) Deferred tax assets (net) 12 - -
(Q) Other non-current assets 14 - -

Sub total - -
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 15 4.17 4.70
(b) Financial Assets: - -

(i) Investments 8 1.04 1.04
(Ii) Trade receivables 9 106,982.54 106,960.49
(iii) Cash & cash equivalents 16 4,033.85 20,124.52

(iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 17 17.96 17.96
(v) Loans 10 3,530.17 3,536.69
(vi) Other Financial Assets 11 29,352.14 17,899.91

(c) Tax Assets (Net) 13 939.03 1,058.71
(d) Other Current Assets 14 4,467.17 1,241.96
(e) Deferred tax assets (net) - 1,616.96
I(f) Assets held for Sale / Disposal 86802.56 86808.87

Sub total 236130.63 239271.81
Total Assets 236,130.63 239,271.81

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 18 6,000.00 6,000.00
(b) Other Equity 19 (466.264.12) (469325.97)

Sub total (460264.12) (463325.97
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 20 - -
(ii) Trade payables -MSME' - -
(iii) Trade payables -Others 21 - -
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 22 - -

(b) Provisions 23 - -
I(c) Other non-current liabilities 24 . - -

Sub total - -
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 20 198,125.94 198,125.94
(ii) Trade payables -MSME - .
(iii) Trade payables -Others 21 109,778.77 111,886.89
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities 22 372,865.05 377,015.39

(b) Provisions 23 14,592.12 14,542.37
(c) Other current liabilities 24 1,032.87 1.027.19

Sub total 696.394.75 702,597.78
Total EQuitv and Liabilities 236.130.63 239.271.81

Notes:-
1) Consequent upon the decisions taken in the meeting held on 29.08.2019, by the administrative
ministry and further decision of the Board in its 639th meeting dated 05.04.2021, it has been resolved
that STC to continue as a non-operating company for the time being and to prepare the accounts from
the F.Y. 2021-22 onward on non-going concern basis.

2) The consolidated financial results for the period ended 31 st March 2025 were approved by the Board
of Directors in its meeting held on 17.09.2025
3) STC has paid Rs. 200 crore in OTS to Lead banker Canara Bank after signing of the Debt Settlement
Agreement (DSA) and No dues certificate /Settlement Certificate issued jointly by all the six lender banks
on 11.07.2025 in order to complete the One time settlement (OTS) with the lender Banks. Further, The
case .tl1Iild by Lead banker Canara Bank in DRT (case no. TN18/2022) has been withdrawn
15.01.2025. pletlon of OTS and withdrawal of case in DRT has also been informe
MOC&1. ~ S will be reflectd in the next quarter ended 30.09.2025.

·r;;~-o~.~
~~,
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4) Trade receivable of Rs. 1,72,533.71 lacs includes Rs. 65,551.17 lacs having credit impairment.

5) Demand of Rs. 132.83 Crore was raised by L&DO vide its letter no. L&DDO/LS2N9225/133 dated
26th March 2018 from 2004-05 to 31.07.2018 for non-compliance of various conditions of the Lease Deed
(including non-deposits of 25% of the gross rent received by STC from its tenants). However, the
company has disputed the demand and the matter is yet to be resolved. On the observation of CAG
audit, the firm liability of Rs. 8,540 lacs has been created in the books of accounts upto 31.07.2018 in the
F.Y. 2021-22. Further, STC vide letter dated 20.05.2025, has requested L&DO to provide outstanding
dues as on date and the reply as to demand amount is still awaited.Liability from Aug'18 to Jun'25 is not
ascertainable, hence not provided.

6) Based on Accounting Policy on a non-going concern basis w.e.f 01.04.2021 all the assets previously
grouped under Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work-in-progess, Investment Property &
Intangible Assets are now transferred to " Non-Current Assets held for disposal" and are shown on
Carrying Values as on 31.03.2021. As per valuation of STC's immovable porperties, fair value as on
30.09.2023 based on current title is : JVB - Rs 81,145 lacs, STCHC- Rs 48,267 lacs & Others - Rs
26,188 lacs. An impairment of Rs 318 lacs charged from revaluation reserve during the FY 2023-24.

7) Figures of last quarter are the balancing figures between audited figures in respect of the full financial
year & the published year to date figure upto the third Quarter of the current financial year. Amount in the
financial statements are presented in Rs lacs (upto two decimals) except for per share data and as
otherwise stated. Certain small amounts may not appear in financial statements due to rounding off in Rs
lacs. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever considered necessary.
Regrouping / rearrangement of data Is for specific purpose of presentation In financial statements only
and do not affect legal status of STC. STC reserves all its rights under the applicable laws.

8) STC has opted the new tax regime of Income Tax and has written of the MAT credit of Rs. 1,617 lacs
in FY 2024-25.

As per our report of even date attached
For P V A R & Associates
Chartered Accountants

FI""R.9'~

(CA Ruehl Agarwal)
Partner

M. No. 504134

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 17.09.2025

(NITIN KUMAR YADAV)
CMD

DIN -03104045

(~
CFO

~\"1'1..(
(Vlpin Trlpathi)

Company Secretary
ACS -29378



THE STATE TRADING CORPORATION OF INDIA LTD.
Statement of Financial Results for the quarter & year ended Mar 31st, 2025

CIN: L74899DL1956GOI002674

~

(Rs. Lacs)Annexure - 2
CONSOLIDATED

Particulars
Quarter ended Quarter ended Quarter ended Year ended March Year ended March

31.03.2025 31.12.2024 31.03.2024 31,2025 31,2024

(audited) (un-audited) (audited) (audited) (audited)
Income
Revenue from Operations - - - - -
Other Income 2,780.06 2,724.25 2,732.74 12,508.80 9,599.26
Total Income 2,780.06 2,724.25 2,732.74 12,508.80 9,599.26
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed - - - - -
Purchases of Stock in trade - - - - -
Change in Inventory - - - - -
Employees' Benefit Expenses 900.08 865.04 827.73 3,167.28 3,336.87
Finance Cost 52.42 47.20 193.62 201.18 193.62
Depreciation & Amortization Expenses - - - - -
Other Expenses 473.91 381.74 413.02 1,634.61 1,373.04
Total expenses 1,426.41 1,293.98 1,434.37 5,003.07 4,903.53.
Profit before exceptional items and tax 1,353.65 1,430.27 1,298.37 7,505.73 4,695.73
Exceptional Items - Expense /(Income) (9.34) 1.08 (148.07) 2,716.81 (436.40)
Profit Before Tax 1,362.99 1,429.19 1,446.44 4,788.92 5,132.13
Tax expense
(i) Current tax 1,046.67 - 793.25 1,046.67 793.25
(i) Tax related to earlier years - 1,268.52 (763.22) 1,267.74 (768.35)

I(ii) Deferred tax - - - - -
Profit for the period from continuing operations (A) 316.32 160.67 1,416.41 2,474.51 5,107.23
Proflt/(Ioss) from discontinued operations - - - - -
Tax expense of discontinued operations - - - - -
Profit from discontinued operations after tax (B) - - - - -
I Profit for the period (A+B) 316.32 160.67 1,416.41 2474.51 5107.23

II Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 587.35 - 2,111.22 587.35 2,111.22
Less: Income Tax on Above - - - - -

~~Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - - - -
11~~( b8i1

Total of Other Comprehensive Income 587.35 - 2,111.22 587.35 2,111.22 at-~ S"tc,..,.., ..~
Total Comprehensive Income for the period ~~7,.. 160.67 3,527.63 3,061.86 7,218.45 ~...;
Paid up eqUity share capital (Face value of Rs. 10/-,~ "p..~ ... ,..~ 1";.,

?7~,OO~is'''' 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00
eachl /1 1'. '\
Other Equity excluding Revaluation Reserves \\~ t-KN- - - (554,406.42) (557,468.27)

~Earnings per equity share: ~~c~,.~~~.
~ ~~ ., 00 "in n03



Segment-wise Revenue, Results, Assets & Liabilities
Annexure - 2 (Rs. Lacs)

CONSOLIDATED

Particulars
Quarter ended Quarter ended Quarter ended Year ended March Year ended March

31.03.2025 31.12.2024 31.03.2024 31,2025 31,2024

(audited) (audited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

1. Segment revenue

a) Export - - - - -
b) Import - - - - -
c) Domestic - - - - -

Total - - - - -
Less -Inter-segment revenue - - - - -

Revenue from operations - - - - .

2. Segment results - Profit I(Loss) before tax and
interest from each segment

a) Export - - - - -
b) Import - - - - -
c) Domestic - - - - -

Total - - - - -

Less:(I) Finance cost 52.42 47.20 193.62 201.18 193.62

(ii) Other unallocable expenditure net off
(1,415.41) (1,476.39) (1,640.06) (4,990.10) (5,325.75)

Unallocable income
Profit before Tax 1,362.99 1.429.19 1.446.44 4,788.92 5,132.13

3. segment Assets
a) Export 9,108.50 9,483.13 9,078.38 9,108.50 9,078.38
b) Import 99,150.31 95,763.69 96,189.76 99,150.31 96,189.76
c) Domestic - - - - -
d) Unallocated 127,871.82 130,595.57 134,003.67 127,871.82 134,003.67

Total 236,130.63 235,842.39 239,271.81 236,130.63 239,271.81
4. Segment Liabilities

a) Export 10,443.41 10,492.80 11,323.53 10,443.41 11,323.53
b) Import 101,851.14 102,254.91 107,315.73 101,851.14 107,315.73
c) Domestic - - - - -

d) Unallocated 584,100.20 584,262.46 583,958.52 584,100.20 583,958.52
Total 696,394.75 697,010.17 702,597.78 696,394.75 702,597.78



THE STATE TRADING CORPORATION OF INDIA LTD.

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

(Rs. :

A.

B

C

Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Profit /(Loss) Before Tax 4,788.92 5,13

Adjustment for:

-Interest on loans -
-Depreciation . -
-Net write back of Debts/Advances/claims/Liabilities/Assets 9.63 (436.92)

-Income/Expenditure relating to let out property (10,466.37) (7,691.94)

- Interest Income on fixed deposits/Investments (1,697.04) (1,695.36)

-Loss on sale of asset . 0.62

-Profit on sale of assets (3.51) (12,157.29) - (9,82

Operating Profit Before Working CapItal Changes (7,368.37) (4,69

Adjustment for:

-Trade and other receivables (16,523.88) 5

-Inventories 0.53

-Trade and other payables 6,332.06 15

Changes In Working Capital (17,559.66) (4,48

Income Tax Paid (481.22) (2,13

Net Cash Generated/Used In Operating Activities (Al (17,078.44) (2,34!

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

-Purchase of Fixed Assets .
-Sale of Fixed Assets 10.02

-Proceeds Received from T-Bills/Deposits 77.18 9

-Interest received 1,697.04 1,69

-Let out properties (net) 10,466.37 7,69

Net Cash From Investing Activities (B) 12,250.61 9,48

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

-Increase in loans - (56

-Interest Paid -
Net Cash From Financing Activities (C) - (56

Net Increase/Decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (4,827.83) 6,5i

Reconciliation of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Closing Cash & Bank Balances as per Balance Sheet 23,971.73 28,79!

Opening Cash & Bank Balances as per Balance Sheet 28,799.56 22,22!

Cash & Bank Balances as per Cash Flow Statement (4,827.83) 6,571

Cash & cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet 23,971.73 28,79!

Less: Non readily convertible Bank Deposits 19,937.88 8,67!

Cash & cash equivalents as per cash flow statement 4,033.86 20,12·

Cash & cash equivalents includes unpaid dividend

Significant Accounting Policies and the accompanying notes 1 to 70 form an integral part of accounts.

As per our report of even date attached

For P V A R & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No. 005223C

(CA Ruchi Agarwal)
Partner

M. No. 504134
Place: New Delhi

Dated: 17.09.2025



THE STATE TRADING CORPORATION OF INDIA LTD.
Statement of Financial Results for the quarter & year ended Mar 31st, 2025

CIN: L74899DL1956GOI002674
Annexure - 1

,'\~. r-~,","""

CONSOLIDATED
Quarter Quarter Quarter

Year ended Year ended
ended ended ended

March 31, 2025 March 31,2024Is.NO PARTICULARS
31.03.2025 31.12.2024 31.03.2024

(audited) (un-audited) (audited) (audited) (audited)

1 Total income from operations - - - - -
2 Net Profit !(Loss) for the period (before tax, exceptional and!or Extraordinary items)

1,353.65 1,430.27 1,298.37 7,505.73 4,695.73

3 Net Profit !(Loss) for the period before tax (after Exceptional and!or Extraordinary items)
1,362.99 1,429.19 1,446.44 4,788.92 5,132.13

4 Net Profit !(Loss) for the period after tax (after Exceptional and!or Extraordinary items)
316.32 160.67 1,416.41 2,474.51 5,107.23

5 Total comprehensive income for the period [comprising Profit! (Loss) for the period (after
903.67 160.67 3,527.63 3,061.86 7,218.45

Tax) and other comprehensive income (after tax)
6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.006 Equity Share Capital

7 Other Equity exclUding Revaluation Reserves - - - (554,406.42) (557,468.27)
8 Earning per share (of Rs. 10!- each) (for continuing and discontinued operations)

(not Annualized) :
1.51 0.27 5.88 5.10 12.03(a) Basic (in Rupees)

!(b) Diluted (in Rupees) 1.51 0.27 5.88 5.10 12.03

Notes:
1) Consequent upon the decisions taken in the meeting held on 29.08.2019, by the administrative ministry and further decision of the Board in its 639th meeting dated 05.04.2021, it
has been resolved that STC to continue as a non-operating company for the time being and to prepare the accounts from the F.Y. 2021-22 onward on non-going concern basis.

2) The consolidated financial results for the period ended 31st March 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on 17.09.2025

3) STC has paid Rs. 200 crore in OTS to Lead banker Canara Bank after signing of the Debt Settlement Agreement (DSA) and No dues certificate !Settlement Certificate issued
jointly by all the six lender banks on 11.07.2025 in order to complete the One time settlement (OTS) with the lender Banks. Further, The case filed by Lead banker Canara Bank in
DRT (case no. TA/18!2022) has been withdrawn on 15.07.2025. The status of completion of OTS and withdrawal of case in DRT has also been informed to MOC&1. Accountng
effect of the OTS will be reflectd in the next quarter ended 30.09.2025.

4) Trade receivable of Rs. 1,72,533.71 lacs includes Rs. 65,551.17 lacs having credit impairment.

5) Demand of Rs. 132.83 Crare was raised by L&DO vide its letter no. L&DDO/LS2Al9225!133 dated 26th March 2018 fram 2004-05 to 31.07.2018 for non
conditions of the Lease Deed (including non-depoMl:s of2. 0 be..gross rent received by STC from its tenants). However, the company has disputed the de
yet to be resolved. On the observation of CAG audit ~.' ~~. 8,540 lacs has been created in the books of accounts upto 31.07.2018 in the F.Y. ~~22fewtl
vide letter dated 20.05.2025, has requested l&D J~videol,l.tsta ~dues as on date and the reply as to demand amount is still awaited. liability from A
ascertainable, hence not provided. '. <:);,~RN-OOS~C . I



6) ~ased on Accounting Policy on a non-going concern basis w.e.f 01.04.2021 all the assets previously grouped under Property, Plant and Equipment, Capital Work-in-progess,
Investment Property & Intangible Assets are now transferred to " Non-Current Assets held for disposal" and are shown on Carrying Values as on 31.03.2021. As per valuation of
STC's immovable porperties, fair value as on 30.09.2023 based on current title is : JVB - Rs 81, 145 lacs, STCHC- Rs 48,267 lacs & Others - Rs 26,188 lacs. An impairment of Rs
318 lacs charged from revaluation reserve during the FY 2023-24.

7) Figures of last quarter are the balancing figures between audited figures in respect of the full financial year & the published year to date figure upto the third Quarter of the current
financial year. Amount in the financial statements are presented in Rs lacs (upto two decimals) except for per share data and as otherwise stated. Certain small amounts may not
appear in financial statements due to rounding off in Rs lacs. Previous year's figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever considered necessary. Regrouping / rearrangement
of data is for specific purpose of presentation in financial statements only and do not affect legal status of STC. STC reserves all its rights under the applicable laws.

8) STC has opted the new tax regime of Income Tax and has written of the MAT credit of Rs. 1,617 lacs in FY 2024-25.

By order of the Board of Directors
As per our report of even date attached
For P V A R &Associates

Chartered Accountants
Finn Reg. No. 005223C

~
(CA Ruchi Agarwal)

Partner
M. No. 504134

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 17.09.2025

~~
(Nitin Kumar Yadav)

CMD
DIN -03104045

~
CFO

-,.,..
~V~~ I
(Anoopa Nair)
Director- Fin

DIN -11138663

~~~<
(Vipin Tripathi)

Company Secretary ACS -29378



THE STATE TRADING CORPORATION OF INDIA LTD
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

21
22
23
24

20

4
5
6
7

8
9
10
11
12
14

15 4.17 4.70

8 1.04 1.04
9 106,982.54 106,960.49
16 4,033.85 20,124.52
17 17.96 17.96
10 3,530.17 3,536.69
11 29,352.14 17,899.91
13 939.03 1,058.71
14 4,467.17 1,241.96
12 1,616.96

86.802.56 86808.87
236130.63 239271.81
236,130.63 239,271.81

18
19

Sub total

Sub total
Total Assets

Sub total

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
bOther E uit

liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(Ii) Trade payables -MSME
(iii) Trade payables -Others
(iv) Other Financial Liabilities

(b) Provisions
c Other non-current liabilities

Current Assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets:

(I) Investments
(Ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash & cash equivalents

(iv) Bank Balances other than (Ii) above
(v) Loans
(vi) Other Financial Assets

(c) Tax Assets (Net)
(d) Other Current Assets
(e) Deferred tax assets (net)

Non Current Assets held for Sale I Dis osal

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Investment property
(d) Other intangible assets
(e) Financial Assets:

(i) Investments
(Ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Loans
(IV) Other Financial Assets

(f) Deferred tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets

Sub total
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings
(i1) Trade payables -Outstanding dues MSME

(iii) Trade payables -Outstanding dues Other
than MSME

(Iv) Other Financial Liabilities
(b) Provisions
c Other current liabilities

Sub total
Total Eqult and Liabilities

20 198,125.94 198,125.94

21 109,778.77 111,886.89
22 372,865.05 377,015.39
23 14,592.12 14,542.37
24 1,032.87 1,027.19

696394.75 702597.78
236130.63 239,271.81

Significant Accounting Policies and the accompanying notes 1 to 70 form an integral part of accounts.

As per our report of even date attached

For P V A R & Associates

Chartered Accountants

F'm>R'9.~C _ •

(CARUChIA~
Partner

M. No. 504134

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 17.09.2025

(NITlN KUMAR YAOAV)
CMD

DIN -03104045



2,111

2,111

9.59~

9,59~

587.35

587.35

3,167.28 3,33E
201.18 19~

1 634.61 1 37~

5,003.07 4,90~

7,505.73 4,69!
2716.81 43E
4,788.92 5,13~

1,267.74 (76~

1,046.67 79~

2,474.52 5,107

2,474.52 5,107

12508.80
12,508.80

34

35

27
28
29
30
31
32
33

25
26

THE STATE TRADING CORPORATION OF INDIA LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Rs. L.

Total Income

Income
i) Revenue from Operations
ii) Other Income

Expenses
i) Cost of materials consumed
ii) Purchases of Stock in trade
iii) Change in Inventory
iv) Employees' Benefit Expenses
v) Finance Cost
vi) Depreciation &Amortization Expenses
vii) Other Expenses

Total expenses
Profit before exceptional Items and tax

Exceptional Items -Expense/(Income)
Profit Before Tax

Tax expense
(i) Tax related to earlier years
(ii) Current Tax
(iii) Deferred tax

Profit for the Year from continuing operations
Profit from discontinued operations after tax

I Profit for the Year

II Other Comprehensive Income
i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

• Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans
Less: Income Tax on Above

ii) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 3,061.87
Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic 5.10
(2) Diluted 5.10

7,218

12
12

Significant Accounting Policies and the accompanying notes 1 to 70 form an Integral part of accounts.

%h'
(VIPIN TRIPATH

Company Secrete:
ACS -29378

~
Director· Fin

DIN -1113866~

(~B~F~a~

(NITIN KUMAR YADAV)
CMD

DIN -03104045

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 17.09.2025

(CA Ruchi Agarwal)
Partner

M. No. 504134

As per our report of even date attached
For P V A R & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 005223C



Annexure- 4

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Compliance Certificate by the CEO and CFO under Regulation 17(8)
specified in Port-B of Schedule II Corporate Governance of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

The Board of Directors of
The State Trading Corporation of India Ltd.

We B. Srinivas Rao, CFO and Nitin Kumar Yadav, CMD certify that: .

A. We have reviewed consolidated financial statements and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31.03.2025 and
that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue
statement or omit any material fact statements that might be
misleading;

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the
Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing Accounting
Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions
entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent,
illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal
controls for financial reparting and have evaluated the effectiveness of
internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial
reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit
Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal



controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or
propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

D. We have indicated to the Auditors that:

1. There has not been any significant change in the internal
control over financial reporting during the year under reference.

2. There has not been significant change in accounting policies
during the year except those disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements; and

3. There has not been any instances during the year of significant
fraud except to the extent disclosed in notes to the accounts, of
which we had become aware and the involvement therein, if any,
of the management or an employee having significant role in the
company's internal control system over financial reporting

Place: New Delhi
Date: 17.09.2025

~
(CFO)

~-i
Nitin Kumar Yadav

(CMD)



Annexure- 5

TO WHOMSOEVER IT MAY CONCERN

To the best of our knowledge and based on subject to

compliance certificate the consolidated audited financial results for the

year ended 31.03.2025 do not contain any false or misleading

statement or figures and do not omit any material fact which may make

the statement or figures contained therein misleading.

Place: New Delhi
17.09.2025

B~
(CFO)

Nitin Kumar Yadav

(CMD)



Other Information- Integrated Filing (Financial)

For the Financial Year ended 31.03.2025

51. No.

B.
Statement of deviation or variation for prceeds of public issue, Rights issue, preferential

Not Applicable
issue 1 Qalified institutions placement etc.

STC has paid Rs. 200 crore in OTS to Lead banker Canara Bank after signing of the

Debt Settlement Agreement (DSA) and No dues certificate /Settlement Certificate

issued jointly by all the six lender banks on 11.07.2025 in order to complete the One

time settlement (OTS) with the lender Banks. Further, The case filed by Lead banker

C. Disclosure of outstanding default on loans and debt securities Canara Bank in DRT (case no. TA/18/2022) has been withdrawn on 15.07.2025. The

status of completion of OTS and withdrawal of case in DRT has also been informed

to MOC&1. Accountng effect of the OTS will be reflectd in the next quarter ended

30.09.2025.

D. Format for disclosure of Related Party Transactions (applicabe only for half-yearly filings) Enclosed

Statement on impact of Audit Qualifications (For Audit Report with Modified Opinion)

E. Submitted along with annual audited financial results - (Standalone Not Applicable and Enclosed

Consolidated separately) (applicable only for annual filing Le. 4 th quarter)

Place: New Delhi

Date: 17.09.2025
~

CFa



THE STATE TRADING CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED, NEW DELHI

Statement of impact of Audit Qualification for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2025 along with Annual Audited Financial Results - (Consolidated)

(Rs. L

Audited Figures as
I S.No. Particulars reported before adjusting Audited Figures as reported after adjusting for qualifications

for qualifications

1 Total Income 12506.60 124440
2 Total Expenditure 5003.07 11998S
3 Net ProfiVILoss\ 7505.73 4.452
4 EaminQ per share 5.10 1
5 Total Assets 236130.63 348.017
6 Total Liabilities 696394.75 811380

7 Net Worth (exclUding Revaluation (546,406.42) (551 ,45~Reserve)

8
Any other financial Item (as felt Nil
appropriate by the management

II Audit qualification
i. Referto Note No.4(a) of Consolidated Financial Statements, non-availability of title deeds In the name oftJ.e Group
respect of following properties namely:
a) Leasehold Building
i. Leasehold land at Jawahar Vyapar Bhawan valued at Rs. 55,929 lacs
ii. Leasehold land at Housing Colony at Aurobindo Marg valued at Rs. 12,394 lacs
iii. Plot at Mallet Bunder, Mumbai Port Trust valued at Rs. 11.67 lacs
b) Freehold Building
i. 8 Residential Flats at Asian Games Village Complex, allotted by DDA amounting to Rs. 2720 lacs
ii. 7 apartments in different locations of Mumbal amounting to Rs. 1918 lacs
Further, lease period for plot at Mallet Bunder, Mumbai Port Trust has already expired and the land has been handed
over to Mumbai Port Trust. Surrender certificate has been executed on 12.11.2021. But this still continues to be shov
as non-current assets held for sale. Thus, non- current assets held for sale has been overstated by Rs. 11.67 lacs. It

1 a. Details of Audit Qualification also have consequential Impact on the Statement of Profit and Loss account resulting into overstatement of profit by
11.67 lacs.
Further the farm tanks installed at Mallet Bunder amounting to Rs. 14.84 lacs have also been handed over on as is
where Is basis. The State Trading Corporation of India Limited has not raised any debit note for the same and thus m
current assets are being overstated by Rs. 14.84 lacs. Further to this, the auction of the STC assets was conducted t
MBPT on 11.06.2024 and
the assets were ultimately sold for Rs. 355 lacs, with the previously forfeited EMD of Rs. 25
Lacs. STC calculated its total receivables from MBPT at Rs. 416 lacs which includes the sale
proceeds, EMD and deposits. STC to set off this amount against the Rs. 257 lacs Lease rent
payable, (amount yet to be reconciled with MBPT) resulting in a net receivable of Rs. 161 lacs
from MBPT. Refer Note 57.
Further, Group has not amortized the value of the leasehold properties according to the IND AS 116 for the period
expired till 31.03.2025 resulting into overstatement of non-current assets held for sale and consequential impact on p
of the Group, the amount whereof could not be quantified In absence of complete data from the Group.

b. Type of Audit Qualification: Qualified Opinion
c. Frequency of Quallflcalton Reoeat

Title/Lease deed In respect of following properties Is pending for executlon:-
I. Leasehold Land:-
Lease hold land includes land measuring 2.599 acres allotted by L&DO vide "Memorandum of Agreement for Lease"
dated 05.12.1975 for construction of office building i.e. JawaharVyaparBhawan at Janpath. New Deihl for which lease
deed is not yet executed in the name of the Company.
Leasehold land includes a plot at Mallet Bunder, Mumbai Port Trust (where STC has a Tank Farm Installation) for whi
lease period has expired and the surrender certificate has been executed on 12.11.2021.The tanks installed at Mallet

d. For Audit qualification, whether the Bunder has been surveyed by the MbPT and assets handed over on as Is where Is basis with an understamJlng that t
Impact is quantified by the audit, value of the same shall be adjusted and paid to STC. Hence, appropriate treatment will be effected upon arrival of su'
management's view valuation.

Ii. Freehold Buildlng:-
Freehold Building Includes house building at Asian Games Village Complex (AGVC) allotted by DDA vide allotment Ie
dated 30.05.1964, which Is earmarked for settlement under OTS on as Is where Is basis. The valuation of the properti
Is underway.
Free hold building includes 7 apartments In Mumbal (Located 2 at Wallace Apartment Grant Road, 3 at Mandar
Apartment, 1 at Shyamsadan at Khar (West) and 1 at Las Palmas, Malabar hills), which Is earmarked for settlement
under OTS on as Is where is basis.
II. Refer Note No.4, for non-adjustment of value/area in Fixed Assets Register against areas acquired by Delhi Metro
Rail Corporation (DMRC) for construction of Metro Station & by L&DO for widening of the Road during Asian Games,

2 a. Details of Audit Qualification
well as the flats/area of land sold by the Group to The Handicrafts and Handloom Exports Corporation of India Limitec
(HHEC) for Its Housing colony. Management Is In correspondence with DMRC and concerned departments.
This has resulted into overstatement of non-current assets held for sale and consequential Impact on profit of the Gro
the amount whereof could not be quantified In absence of complete data from the Group.

b. Type of Audit Qualification: Qualified Ooinlon
c. Frequency of Quallflcaiton Repeat

325.665 square meters taken by NDMC for widening of roads during Asian Games and 386.91 square meters taken b

d. For Audit qualification, whether the DMRC for construction of Metro / Metro Station out of the total leasehold land allotted by L& DO to STC for constructl'

impact Is quantified by the aUdit, of office building at (Jawahar Vyapar Bhawan) Tolstoy Marg, Janpath, New Deihl. The Company has taken up the mal

management's view with L&DO for reduction of both the area and the records will be updated In
Fixed Assets register/Schedule in respect of its area & value once the final outcome In the matter Is arrived at. The
efforts are belnQ made with L&DO in this reQard on reQular basis.



All trade receivables amounting to 1,72,533.71 lacs as per Note NO.9 have been outstanding for more than 3 years.
Group has made provision for bad and doubtful debts amounting to Rs. 65,551.17 lacs and another sum of Rs.
1,06,9B2.54 lacs have been shown as "Having Significant increase in credit risk" since the same Is under litigation. A:
per Note No.9, it is explained that no provisioil has been made for the same since the relevant creditors will be paid c
after recovery of these trade receivables, though In most of the cases agreements are not tripartite.
Further there has been no recovery during the Financial Year 2023-24 and there is no major update of legal cases wi
are pending at various forums. Thus trade receivable are not stated at realizable value less cost to be incurred to
recover these trade receivables. There Is also no balance confirmation available for these trade receivables as on
31.03.2024 and hence we are unable to comment upon the genuineness and effect of the same on the financial
statements, If any,
We are of the view that all trade receivables amounting to 1,72,533.71 lacs are considered doubtful of recovery resul
into short provision for doubtful debts amounting to Rs. 1,06,9B2.54 lacs. Thus the provision for bad and doubtful det
has been understated by Rs. 1,0'6,962.54 lacs and consequential Impact on the statement of profit and Loss account

3 a. Details of Audit Qualification resulting Into overstatement of profit by Rs. 1,06,962.54 lacs.
Further In case of MIs Rajat Pharmaceuticals Ltd (RPL), under note no.39.4, Pt.No.4, who drew bills of exchange on
STC which were accepted upon receipt of overseas buyer's pre-acceptance to STC's bills of exchange. However, the
foreign buyers defaulted In making payments against the export bills and have gone into liqUidation. A sum of RS.527
lacs has been admitted by the liquidator of one of the foreign buyer's I.e. Loben Trading Co. Pte. Ltd, Singapore. A
Decree of Rs 6247 lacs approx. has been passed by Hon'ble Bombay High Court in favour of STC against the dues fl
another foreign buyer I.e Sweetland Trading Pte Ltd., Singapore. As of current date, RPL has gone into liqUidation an
official liquidator is appointed by Hon'ble High Court of Bombay. The matter is also under investigation by CBL Banks
Financial institutions have flied legal suit against RPL before DRT/High Court Mumbai, making STC also a party to thl
case claiming Rs. 47647 lacs. STC has flied non-money claim suit before different Courts at Delhi & Mumbai for
declaring Bills of Exchanges
of STC as null and void and unenforceable against STC which were conditionally accepted by STC on back-toback bl
I.e. STC will make payment to RajaUBanks only upon receipt of export proceeds from the foreign
buyers.

b. Type of Audit Qualification: Qualified Opinion

c. Frequency of Qualificaiton Repeat

Out of the total trade receivable of Rs. 1,72,533.71 lacs includes Rs. 1,06,962.54 lacs "having significant Increase In
credit risk" being under disputellitigation (for details of major legal cases refer note no. 39 ). Trade receivables agalns
which disputellegal proceedings are under process, have been considered as "Having Significant increase in credit ril
The company feels that even if no amount would eventually be recovered, no credit impairment is reqUired for the cre
risk since the creditor will be paid by the company only to the extent the amount Is realized from the debtors.
Trade receivables include 56,B44 Lacs (approx.) on account of export of pharma products to foreign buyers purchase

d. For Audit qualification, whether the
from MIs Rajat Pharmaceuticals Ltd". (RPL). RPL drew bills of exchange on STC which were also accepted upon reCE

impact Is quantified by the audit,
of overseas buyer's pre- acceptance to STC's bills of exchange. The foreign buyers I.e. MIs Loben Trading and MIs

management's view
Sweetland defaulted In making payment against the export bills. A claim of 52,7B6 Lacs has been admitted by the
liquidator of one of the foreign buyer I.e. Loben Trading Co.Pte Ltd, Singapore. A Decree of 6,247 Lacs has been pas
by Hon'ble Mumbai High Court In favour of STC against the dues from foreign buyer I.e. Sweetland Trading Pte Ltd. /l
of current date, RPL has gone into liquidation and official liquidator Is appointed by Hon'ble High Court MumbaL The
matter Is also under Investigation by CBI. No provision is required against the same. Banks & Financial Institutions ha
flied legal suit against RPL before DRT/Hlgh Court Mumbal making STC also a party to the case claiming 47,647 Lac:
STC has filed non-money claim suit before different Courts at Delhi & Mumbai for declaring Bills of Exchanges of STC
null and void and unenforceable against STC which were conditionally accepled by STC on back to back basis I.e STI
Currently, as per books of accounts, USD 3,149.35 lacs and Euros 20.90 lacs Is receivable from Its foreign buyers an,
USD 41.49 lacs and Pound 0.04 lacs Is payable to its foreign suppliers. In nutShell, there are foreign buyers and
creditors standing In the financials of STC which have not been revalued In the FY 2023-24.

4 a. Details of Audit Quallflcatlon
Thus, the Group has not complied with Ind AS 21 (regarding Effects of Changes In Foreign Exchange) by no· revaluln
the carrying amounts, in most cases, of foreign currency receivables and payables, which are under Iitigationldisputec
Therefore, we are unable to ascertain the potential impact on the financial statements, If any.

b. Type of Audit Quallflcation: Qualified Oolnlon
c. Frequency of Quallficalton ReDeat

d. For Audit qualiflcatlon, whether the Matters are subjudlce considering materiality concept.

impact is quantified by the audit,
management's view

1. Refer Note No. 14 -"Other Current Assets for non-provisioning in respect of Duties and taxes recoverable, CST (CI
) amounting to Rs. 6.69 lacs which is non recoverable and still not written off,

ii. Refer Note No. 11- Other Financial Assets -Claims Recoverable: For non-provisioning in respect of Claims

5 a. Details of Audit Qualification Recoverable ols since more than 3 years amounting to Rs.3152.94 lacs where no present status Is ascertained by the
management of the Group and stili not written off.
This Is non-compliance of IND AS -36 as no provision has been made for impaired assets.
All these current assets are being reflected at their carrying amounts Instead of on Realization values.
This has resulted Into overstatement of Current assets by Rs.3152.94 lacs and overstatement of profit by Rs.3152.94
lacs.

b. Type of Audit Qualification: Quallfled Oolnlon
c. Frequency of Quallficaiton Reoeat
d. For Audit Qualification whether the Pending with various department and authorities

Refer Note No. 36, for non-provision of a demand of Rs. 4,743 lacs out of total demand received from Land and
Development Office - New Delhi amounting to Rs. 13,263 lacs (for the period March,2004 to July, 201 B) which has
resulted In overstatement of profit by Rs 4,743 lacs and understatement of liabilities. However, It has been shown as
contingent liability. Also, company has not provided for interest accruing on the said demand amount (to be calculated

6 a. Details of Audit Qualification the rate of 1O%) approx. Profits are overstated and liabilities are understated by the amount yet to be ascertained by
Management. Director General of Audit has intimated short provision of Rs.75.92 cr towards Interest (calCUlated @10~

p.a. on RS.132.B3 cr from 14th July 2016 upto 31st March 2024) which will further cumulate till final payment to L&DO,
Further, STC vide letter dated 20.05.2025 requested L&DO to provide outstanding dues as on date and the reply Is sti
awaited. Profits are overstated and liabilities are understated by the amount yet to be ascertained by Management.
Further. Company has not ascertained Iiabilityl prov!sionalliabilily for Non-compliance of the various conditions of the

b. Type of Audit Quallflcatlon: Qualified Opinion
c. Frequency of Quallficalton Reoeat



d. For Audit qualification, whether the
Impact is quantified by the audit,
management's view

Demand of Rs. 132.83 Crore was raised by L&DO vide its letter no. L&DDO/LS2AJ92251133 dated 26th March 2018 .
2004-05 onwards for non-compliance of various conditions of the Lease Deed (Including non-deposits of 25% of the
gross rent received by STC from Its tenants). However, the company has disputed the demand and the matter is yet
be resolved. On the observation of CAG audit, the firm liability of Rs. 8,540 lacs has been created in the books of
accounts for the F.Y. 2021-22. Further, STC through its various letters has been regularly follOWing up with L&DO for
providing details of outstanding dues and the latest reminder letter dated 20.05.2025 has been issued by STC requel
L&DO to provide details of outstanding dues, as on date and the reply is still awaited.

7 a. Details of Audit Qualification

8 a. Details of Audit Qualification

9 a. Details of Audit Qualification

10 a. Details of Audit Qualification

11 a. Details of Audit Qualification

Refer Note No.21, All the trade payables amounting to Rs. 1,11,886.89 lacs are without any balance confirmation and
are outstanding for more than 3 financial years. No amount is payable to these parties as these are suppliers who hal
entered Into legal agreement with STC wherein no amount is payable to them until and unless the amount is recovere
from the buyer. Thus, the management has not accorded any treatment to these trade payables and to that extent,
lIabllllles are overstated.

1--1-:-..--..",---....-:----..:""""'---,;;;;--:;------;
I--+=b~.;:.T~yPle'-'0;,.;f:':A"_"u:..:d7It.,;;Q;:,;:u~a;i;lifi~c~ati:'_lo:.:n:.:..: ----{Qualified Opinion
I--+'c:..;.,-=F:-re:.:..q:L:u:..;.e-=n""cy<....c..0f....,Q~ua=-I....,lfi_'_ca=-i.o.;to....,n--,.._~_-i Repeat
I-+d:..:..~F~o::...r ,-,A~ud;:::i,,-t.:t:=:alua:::.:I""'lfi~ca~t:::lo::..n'-l...:.:w.:.,:h:::.et:.:;h,,:::e::...r ~th,""e:""--I Matters are subjudice

GST
Refer Note No.14, The GST input receivable and payable balances are not reconciled by the Group as on March
31,2024. GST Input Rs 64.73 lacs - non claimable but no provision has been made. Profll of the Group is overstated
the same amount.

Tax Deducted at Source
TDS deducted will be reconciled with form 26AS at the time of submitting Income Tax return, as on the date of report
complete Information Is not available.
No provision has been made for TDS default of Rs 8.89 lacs pending, submission of correction statements.

l---1-b_.;:-Ty'-'fp_le_o_f_A_u_d
7
It.,.Q,...u....,a"'lifl...ca-,t"..lo_n_: -jQualifled Opinion

c. Frequency of Quallficalton Repeat
I-~d:'-. '=F;";;or""A-:'-u::"'d:'::lt:.LQ"':u-'-a;7;lIfl;:'c:':"at'::-lo;";;n:':",":';w7-h'-'et""h-er--Ct""h-e--lGST matter will be taken up & default of TDS will be paid in FY-2025-26

impact is quantified by the aUdit,
management's view

Refer Note No. 24, customer at credit includes amount payable to U.P. Government amounting to Rs
603 lacs. As informed by the management, the The State Trading Corporation of India Limited has
made various other claims on U.P Government and accordingly dues of Rs. 3382.23 lacs Is recoverable
from U.P. Government for which debit note dated March 10, 2014 was raised. However, the said claim
was not recognized in the Consolidated financial statements of the Group till date, as its ultimate
collection was not certain. In absence of information on acceptability of the said claim by the UP
Government, we are unable to ascertain its possible impact, If any, on the Consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

1--+':--=-=-'::"T";~;7"r;-:-:'=o==::------i
I--I-b_,-;T""y""pe_o,;...fA_Ud_I,,1Q~u-:al:-;;lfl,;...c-.at,:,,"lo_n_: -;Qualified Opinion
I--+c,,-'-,;F:,-re:.:lQ,::lu;";;e~n",,Cy<.....:.of,-:Q::;;::.ua::.;l7-lfl.=.ca::...i..:.;t07-n'"--:c-_-::-_-I Repeat

d. For Audit qualificallon, whether the • Includes an amount payable of Rs. 603 lacs to U,P. Government Is adjustable against claims of Interest and carrying
Impact is quantified by the audit, charges amounting to Rs 3,382.23 lacs is outstanding from UPGEWC on account of (i) differential of import price and
management's view amount realised on risk sate of 9555.285 MTs Lemon Tur and (II) Interest and oarrying charges, and STC has been

continuously following up the recovery matter with Govt of UP and 'flIed Its petillon dtd 28.01.2022 for resolution of
dispute through AMRCD mechanism. Last AMRCD meetlng was held on 14.11.2025 wherein AMRCD committee had
directed to carry out the reconciliation between STC and UPGEWC. Accordingly, STC vide letter dated 28.02.2025 has
sent the doouments/lnformation in support of our claim to UPGEWC. Further, a reminder dated 13.05.2025 Is also sent

I-+- ---Ito UPGEWC by STC.
Penalty Provisions (Refer Note No.7): STC could not comply with Regulation 17,18,19,20 & 21 of
SEBI (LODR), 2015 due to non-appointment of Independent Directors on the Board of STC and Regulation
33 due to non-submission of consolidated annual financial results for FY 2024-25 due to non-receipt of financial
statement from STCL Limited i.e. wholly owned SUbsidiary company of STC limited. Consequently, both the stock
exchanges i.e BSE and NSE levied a cumulative fine of ~ 45.17 Lakhs (approx.) on STC for noncompliance of Reg
17,18,19,20,21 & 33 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. and STC has taken up the
matter with regarding the said non-compliances with its Administrative Ministry and also with the Stock
Exchanges to avoid/waive off the penaities imposed in this regard. Based on precedence, STC is hopefUl of getting
waiver, hence no provision (being of contingent nature) has been made. Profit of the company Is overstated and the
liabilities are understated by the same amount.

1--+.--=-..........,;--:""""...,...,=..,.,.,-------1
I---t=b.:..,'Ti::'ry~PEe,.,.;o~f='=A:-"U~di'i_t ;;;:Q""u::.ai~1fl7c=,Oat;.::lo~n-'-:----IQuallfled Opinion
I--I-c,.....-=F:-re:.:..Q""u_e-=n:7'cy'--of....,Q:'::u,;...a--,I....,lfl_'_ca"-l_to....,n--,.._~_-i First Time
l-+d:..:..~F-"o::...r ,-,A""u;:::di,,-t-'1all::;ja:::.:I""'lfi""ca~t'""lo:.:.;n"-, .:.,:w.:.,:h""et",h:::e:..r~th,""e:""--I Division is hopeful to get the waiver.

Investments (Refer Note No.8)
• NSS Satpura Agro Development Company Ltd. (Joint Venture) : The company has
been strike off as per MCA site. However, stili ills appearing In the books of accounts of STC India
limited. The availability/recovery of asset andfor write off could not be ascertained by the management.
• Sea Lac Agro Ventures limited: The latest financlals of the JV are not available for verification.
The availability/recovery of asset and/or write off could not be ascertained by the management.
• Maharashtra Small Scale Industries Development: The latest financlals of the JV are not
available for verification. The availability/recovery of asset and/or write off could not be ascertained by
the management.
• Andhra Pradesh Trade Promotion Corporation Limited: The latest flnancials of the JV
are not available for verification. The availability/recovery of asset and/or write off could not be
ascertained by the management.
• Sindhu Resetttiement: The latest flnancials of the JV are not available for verification. The availability/recovery of asset
and/or write off could not be ascertained by the management.

I--+.:--.;::-.,..,.....=-,..-,;;~:-:==-=.",...,:------I
I----l-"b_.T='y'-"p:..:e.....;o:..:f"-A;,.:;u"-dl~t ""Q;,.:;u,;.,al,:;;lfi:..;.ca",t""lo,;...n,;...: ---j Qualified Opinion
I--+c....-::F,...re,;...q,:-u_e..,.,nc.,..:y,-o_f.."Qc=u..;a....,li,....fic_s_lt..;o,..n""""'_""'-_-1 First Time

d. For Audit qualification, whether the Effective treatment w.r.t NSS Satpura Agro Development Company Ltd. shall be given in F.Y. 2025-26.
impact is quantified by the sudit, Investment In Sindhu Resellllelilent has been shown at a nominal value of 0.04 lacs.
management's view Rest all the investments have been fully provided for.



Other Equity (Refer Note No.19): An amount of "Exchange Fluctuation Reserves: Rs.649.53 lacs" &

12 a. Details of Audit Qualification
"Bonus Reserve: Rs.0.33 lacs" are appearing In the books of accounts since long. As confirmed by management, thl
reserves are created long back and details shall be provided In next financial year. We are unable to ascertain its
possible Impact, If any, on the Consolidated financial statements of the Group

b. Type of Audit Qualification: Qualified Opinion
c. Frequency of Qualiflcaiton Repeat
d. For Audit qualification, whether the Earmarked reserves created In previous years. The same shall be reviewed In F.Y. 2025-26.
Impact Is quantified by the audit,
manaaement's view

Signatories

'A~> CMD

> CFO

v~> Audit Committee Chairman

> Statutory Auditor - PVAR & AssocIates ~) ...a. •



Fonnat for Disclosure of Related Party Transactions (applicable only for half-yearly filings i.e., 2nd and 4th quarter)

Additional disclosure of related parly transactions - applicable only in case the related parly
transacllon relates to loans, inter-{;()rporate deposits, advances or investments made or given by
the listed entity/subsidiary. These details need to be disclosed only once, during the reporting
period when such transaction was undertaken.

OetaUs of the parly Details ofthe counterparly In case monies In case any financial Indebtedness is Details of the loans, inter-{;()rporate deposits, advances or
(Usted entity /subsidiary) are due to either incurred to make or give loans, inter- investments

entering into parly as a result corporate deposits, advances or
the transaction of investments

Type of Value of the transaction

Sr, related transaction during
No, Relationshi

parly the reporting Nature of Nature Purpo
pof the

transaction period indebtedne {loan! sefor
counterpart ss (loan! advan which
y with the Openin issuance of Details of eel Inter Secur the
listed entity 9 debt! any other interco est ed/ funds
or its balanc Closing other etc.) indebtedne Tenur rporat Rate Tenur unsee wiD be
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SBI Personalised Banking Branch Tennant Service
9,162,634

SBIIFB Branch Tennant Service
52,056,900

SBl CAG Branch Tennant Service
46,729,020

S81 Overseas Branch Tennant Service 67,9n,480

Special Protection Group Te,nnant Service 2,411,442

Security Printing & Minting Corporation Tennant Service 41,691,521

IRCTC Tennant Servlre 933,741

Department ofadmist Reform and Public gravience Tennant Service
90,910,022

Department ofEconomic Affairss Tennant Service 52,892,974

NCLT Tennant Service -
Commission ofAir Quality Index Tennant Service 11,569,948

Capacity Building Commission Tennant Service 36,264,853

STCL Subsld1ary Service
120,000

ONGC Tennant SerVice (0)

16th Finance Commision Tennant Service 51,965,621

Shri. S.K Meena KMP Employee 1,555,044
&ne6t

Shri B.S Rao KMP
Employee 1,054,331
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Shri Vipin Kumar Tripathi KMP
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